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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of HongDa
Financial Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s
final results for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Year”).

The Company has officially changed its name from “E-Rental
Car Company Limited” to “HongDa Financial Holding Limited”
and its Chinese name from “E BHMIHEAR A" to “3A
ELREKRAERAEA in June 2016. The Board considers
that the change of company name has better reflected the
direction of the Group’s business development, which is in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole,
especially in these challenging economic times. We constantly
evaluate our business strategies towards, and the performance
of, the business operations of the Group. It is dedicated not
only to developing the Group’s existing businesses but is also
dynamic in pursuing business diversification to generate new
avenues for growth.

The Group invested in a joint venture company in Harbin
City of Heilongjiang Province, the PRC in November 2016,
with a view to being interested in 4% of the joint venture
Company with capital contribution of RMB100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$112,000,000). The principal
objectives of the joint venture company are the development
of the businesses of internet microfinance, microfinance,
discounted note, asset transfer, agency, subprime lending,
and investments in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On 20 January 2017, Finest Achieve Limited (“Finest
Achieve”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a shareholders’ agreement with, among others,
Ever Step Holdings Limited (“Ever Step”) and Charm Success
Group Limited (“Charm Success”), pursuant to which Finest
Achieve would provide a shareholders’ loan to King Focus
International Limited (“King Focus”). Finest Achieve has an
equity interest of 14% in King Focus.

Well Up (Hong Kong) Limited (“Well Up”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of King Focus, has utilized the shareholders’ loans
from Finest Achieve, Charm Success and Ever Step to partly
finance the acquisition of shares in Ping An Securities Group
(Holdings) Limited (“Ping An Securities Group”), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 231) (the “Acquisition”).
Completion of the Acquisition triggers an obligation of general
offer to purchase its remaining shares (“Offer”). To complete
the Acquisition and the Offer, Well Up obtained a facility
(“Haitong Facility”) from Haitong International Securities
Company Limited. The Haitong Facility is in respect a credit
facility of up to HK$1,464 million, and is secured by, among
other collaterals, the several corporate guarantee granted by,
amongst others, the Company in favor of Haitong International
Securities Company Limited. (Please refer to the two
announcements of the Company dated 20 January 2017 for
details.)

Annual Report 2016 =& — /N E £ 3R

RZE—+tF—AZ+H AQREIZEEZR
E [t B /A 7] Finest Achieve Limited ([Finest
Achieve ]) B (E# 835 ) Ever Step Holdings
Limited ([Ever Stepl) XEKEEBERE X 7
([ERRI)FIIRR B - #E L Finest Achieve
M King Focus International Limited ([King
Focus )2t —Z R R E 3 - Finest Achieve
7 King Focus # A 14% IRAHE R ©

King Focusz 2 EMBRARAIKRST(BEB)AEBR
NEN[RE])EEMAFinest Achieve * £ &
Ever Step 2R EFUAKEFLESEE
(ZER)ERAR(IFRRHFEE ) (ARHMHRA
EBMEZZBR AT ER LT (RGO R
231)) 2l (TWBEE D RHIT S ES - I
BEEH TNELEZEENET UEEEH
THRH(TEN]) - AERREFEREZELN K
SEOREEZISFERAFTNGHE([EER
B - BRAMENAEMKZ1,464,000,0008
TZEERE  YH(EFREFEEMERD) K
ANAEGBEEESERARKDL ZERAA
BEREER - (FB5BHLHEARRBHAZET
—tF-AZ+HHNWOHRE -



One of the principal subsidiaries of Ping An Securities Group,
Ping An Securities Limited, is mainly engaged in the provision
of securities brokerage, securities underwriting and placements
and financial advisory services. Ping An Securities Limited is a
corporation licensed to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Our indirect
investment via Well Up in Ping An Securities Group is in line
with our repositioning more towards the business of provision
of financial services.

The Group entered into a subscription agreement in May 2016
to issue convertible bonds for the maximum principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 and all of these bonds were issued in full
on 17 May 2016, This aptly shows that the bond holders have
much confidence towards our business and market position in
financial services.

Looking ahead, the Group will proactively identifying potential
opportunities in acquisition of financial services. In addition,
we will continue to seek different financing resources for our
business expansion, and further fund raising exercises are
expected. We believe that such process will further boost our
interest income and achieve sound financial performance in
the years to come.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity
to thank everyone in the Group for their unfailing contributions,
and also our clients, investors, business partners and social
communities for their continuous support, and to all of our
colleagues for their hard work and dedication to achieve our
strategic goals and mission. | will work closely with the Board
to explore opportunities in the financial market on a timely
manner, to form sustainable long-term strategies and to build
up positive corporate images in a bid to develop the business
in a healthy way.

| extend my heartfelt gratitude to you all again.

Deng Shufen
Chairman and Executive Director

28 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

BUSINESS REVIEW

Car rental business

With its existing fleet size, It RB LT AEHEARET A A
(Beijing Tu An Car Rental Services Limited*) (“Beijing Tu
An”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC which is principally engaged in car rental services
business, has reached its full utilization. Beijing Tu An is
enhancing its execution capabilities, making great efforts in
sourcing new customers and focusing on improving service
quality, especially the management of drivers’ services and
its fleet. Different from the general car rental companies in
Mainland China, over 80% of our customers are mid- to high-
end corporations with long-term rental history. Beijing Tu
An will change its operational strategies based on market
demands. Since the second half of 2016, there have been 81
electric cars invested for conducting its rental business. Beijing
Tu An is also in collaboration with foreign car rental companies
to explore and enlarge its customer base. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group’s car rental segment recorded
revenue of approximately HK$24.8 million (2015: HK$24.6
million) and gross profit of approximately HK$4.5 million
(2015: HK$6.2 million), representing a gross profit margin of
approximately 18.1% (2015: 25.2%).

Materials trading business

Since the materials trading business has been a stable
income source, the Group had allocated more resources
and investment for expansion in this segment. For the
year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from the Group’s
materials trading segment significantly increased by 1237%
to approximately HK$3,213.6 million from approximately
HK$240.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
Group also recorded gross profit and gross profit margin
from this segment of approximately HK$119.4 million (2015:
HK$10.8 million) and 3.7% (2015: 4.5%) respectively. Sales
demand from customers for materials trading has significantly
increased for the year and the Group was able to grasp this
opportunity to trade of materials to increase income for the
Group. Nevertheless, the sale was believably opportunistic and
might not continue over long period of time.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financing services business

The Group has a money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
to conduct money lending business in Hong Kong through
the provision of loans. The Group will strive to gain position in
the financing services market by providing flexible, convenient
and tailor-made services to raise accessibility to the Group’s
financing services. As the provision of financing services is still
at an early stage, our revenue generated from this segment
only contributed approximately HK$8.4 million to the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$6.2
million).

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Access to financing services is crucial to business and
economic growth, hence the Group believes that the
provision of financing services is a business with high
potential growth and sustainability. The Group seeks to grasp
potential business opportunities by strategically tapping into
the financial services industry. The Group looks forward to
further expanding its income streams and paving way for
future development through the provision of a wider array of
comprehensive services.

The Group will implement a diversified strategy to expand its
business, and focus on the development of financial and asset
management business. The Group is proactively identifying
opportunities for acquisition of financial business, including
various financial institutions, asset or fund management
companies, so as to strengthen the Group’s business
sectors. Furthermore, with an aim of supporting our business
development, the Group has been continuously introducing
institutional investors and strategic partners by way of issuing
convertible bonds and via other different financing channels
for new business opportunities. The Group believes this will
enhance value for the shareholders of the Company in the long
run.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$3,246.9 million,
which represented an increase of 1097% as compared to
the revenue of approximately HK$271.2 million as recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2015. As mentioned in the
section headed “BUSINESS REVIEW”, the increase was
mainly resulted from (i) the increase in materials trading
from approximately HK$240.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately HK$3,213.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and (i) the development of
financing services business which contributed revenue of
approximately HK$8.4 million.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately 1157%
from approximately HK$247.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately HK$3,114.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of materials trading during
the year.

Gross profit and margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$132.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing
an increase of approximately 464% as compared to the gross
profit recorded in the prior year. The gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 4.5% from 8.6% in 2015 to 4.1%
in the year. The decrease was resulted from increase in sales
of materials trading, which had lower profit margin.

Other income and gains, net

Other income and gains, net of the Group decreased by
approximately 77%, from approximately HK$26.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$6.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease
was mainly resulted from decrease in income in relation to
certain procurement/credit/investment arrangements during the
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
22% from approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately HK$2.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The decrease was mainly due to
implement of cost-saving measures during the year.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 4% from approximately HK$33.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$34.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, was mainly due
to the extra cost incurred as a result of business expansion
during the year.

Other expenses, net

Other expenses, net, increased from approximately
HK$161,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately HK$83.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. The significant increase was mainly due to
the impairment losses of goodwill, intangible assets, available-
for-sale investment and property, plant and equipment
recognised during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$1.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$33.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, mainly due to (i)
the drawdown of certain new interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings utilised to finance the purchase of motor vehicles
for the car rental business and potential projects; and (ii)
effective interest on convertible bonds during the year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased from approximately HK$2.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$12.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, which
was mainly due to the profit generated from the materials
trading during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE D

Liquidity and financial resources

RBEERUBER
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZET—FHEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Current assets RBNVEE
Current liabilities mEN A&
Current ratio mENL R

1,157,282,647 848,271,180
217,538,106 80,401,723
5.32 10.55

As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$39.5 million (2015:
HK$5.1 million).

In view of the Group’s current level of cash and cash
equivalents, funds generated internally from our operations
and from the corporate actions completed during the year, the
Board is confident that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its debt repayment and financing needs for
its operations for the foreseeable future.

E/\\ =z /\E"f’ ﬁ ‘f’ B ZKE@mfﬁi
NE&ZEBYWH 539,500,000 T(ZE—H
F 5,100,000 7T) °

EZRIAEERERS LA FEWOKT
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BAENES  EEQREAEBEERUHMB
BRABNBRZBEBEEENRREBEREN
BaFHE -

Gearing ratio EXREELER
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Total interest-bearing bank and AERITREMEERTE

other borrowings 186,829,384 31,513,733
Equity W 906,140,830 930,867,080
Gearing ratio BERBELE 20.6% 3.4%

As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio is 20.6% (2015:
3.4%). As at 31 December 2016, the maturity profile of the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group
falling due within one year, the second year and the third to
fifth years, inclusive, amounted to approximately HK$180.5
million (2015: HK$26.1 million), HK$6.3 million (2015: HK$3.3
million) and Nil (2015: HK$2.1 million), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital structure

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”). As at 31 December 2016,
the total number of issued shares was 6,501,415,000 (with an
aggregate nominal value of HK$65,014,150). The total number
of issued shares had been changed during the year as follows:

EEENWR DN

BEXRE

RARIMERNEALRE - SREEO0.01ET
(BB RZZE—AR"F+_A=+—8 B
1T I 4 81 5 6,501,415,000 IR (42 T 1E A
65,014,150 70) - EB{TRHDBENRFE
ZEEmT

No. of Shares

Rin 8B
1 January 2016 —E-RF—-HF—H 6,481,375,000
Add: Exercise of Warrants (Note) o 1TERRARRERE (RE) 20,040,000
31 December 2016 —E-RF+ZA=+—H 6,501,415,000
Note: A

On 31 October 2016, Capital Fame Technology Limited (“Capital
Fame”), the subscriber, partially exercised the warrants granted
pursuant to the warrant subscription agreement dated 18 October
2012 between the Company and Capital Fame, to subscribe for
20,040,000 shares (with aggregate nominal value of HK$2,204,400).
As at 31 December 2016, Capital Fame had remaining warrants which
carry rights to subscribe for up to a total of 132,755,454 warrant
shares.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 October
2012, on the issue of the warrants and a series of announcements of
the Company dated 19 March 2013; 2 September 2013, 24 January
2014, 20 November 2014 and 15 June 2015 on the adjustments to
share subscription price.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 22 August 2016, the Company and an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to
purchase and the Company agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Perception Digital Technology (BVI)
Limited and its subsidiary, PD Trading (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Disposed Subsidiaries”), for a consideration of HK$1.00
(the “Disposal”).

NZZT—XFE+HA=+—H " R ACapital Fame
Technology Limited ([ Capital Fame]) 3§ 9 77 £
B A% A A 7 Capital FameR —ZE——F+ A+ N\
HeRBREZBREDEE L 2 RREE - URE
20,040,000 f% f% 17 (48 ™ 18 /2,204,400 % 7T ) ° 7
—Z—RF+-_A=+—H ' Capital Fame#FG& T~
RREHEE  BERERZ A H£132,755,454 [ R HE
BRI o

HIEE2MARTIRMA-S——Ft+tA+/\BAHE
BITRBREBZ DM RARFBAHAZT—=F=
A+hB Z2E—=%fnA=-H - ZZ2—WF—A
A ZE-NE+—AZTHARZZE-HFAN
A+RABEBEAERRMDREEZ — XM -

HENE QR

R_E—RNENAZ+ZZB ARk —%B
VE=ZAFTEBEFDIVEEHZE Bt BF
A 2 B AR 7[R & B & Perception Digital
Technology (BVI) Limited &2 £ K 8B 2 ®IPD
Trading (Hong Kong) Limited ([ & H 2 M B2
A z2MEBTRAE - KER1.008T(MH
EFHE]) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE D

The Group at the time of the Disposal expected to record a
gain on disposal of the Disposed Subsidiaries of approximately
HK$15.6 million, representing the estimated difference
between the total consideration for the Disposal and the
aggregate net liabilities value of the Disposed Subsidiaries at
the date of the Disposal.

Save as the Disposals as disclosed above, there were no
material acquisitions or disposals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Use of proceeds from financing activities
during the Year

Net proceeds

AEBEH  RETHESEZE  BHEES
2 M B AR mEs 2 a4 A 15,600,000 7
T BERHESTEETZA HEFEZL
REBEHZHBARMNBREABEFEZFEE
B o

BREXHBEREZHLESTEIN AEERE_F
—RFTZA=t-BILFEMESEAKES
HE -

RAFEREZTHFEREAR

Actual use of
proceeds as at
31 December
2016

Date of the Fund raising raised R=-Z—RE+=A
announcement  activity EECRB Intended use of proceeds =+—HFERE
DB KEEEE RIEFE FIBREZRERE 2 EBBER®
17 May 2016 Convertible Bonds Approximately To improve working capital Fully applied as
—E-RFRA AR E % HK$200,000,000 of the Group and/or for the intended
++tH #7200,000,000 purpose of financing future RIRTRETEER
BT acquisitions

WEREEEBEED R RIE

BRI EEE A
Foreign currency exposure S EE LB

The foreign currency exposure of the Group primarily arises
from revenue or income generated, cost and expenses
incurred, and certain bank and other borrowings denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group’s
operating units. For the Group’s operating units that have
Renminbi as their functional currency, their foreign currency
transactions and the units’ monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that were translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling as at 31
December 2016 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group expected that the exposure to exchange
rates fluctuation was not significant and therefore had not
engaged in any hedging activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charges on the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2016, there is no pledge of time deposit
for the Group’s bank loan while as at 31 December 2015, the
Group’s bank loan was secured by the pledge of the Group’s
time deposit of approximately HK$18.8 million. As at 31
December 2016, certain of the other borrowings were secured
by certain of the Group’s motor vehicles of approximately
HK$8.1 million (2015: HK$21.4 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting of the Company
will be held on Friday, 26 May 2017 (the “AGM”). The notice
of the AGM will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company and available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 23 May 2017 to Friday, 26 May 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfers of shares shall
be effected. In order to qualify for attending the forthcoming
AGM, all transfer of shares, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 22 May
2017.

EEENWR DN

AEEEEEHA

R-ZT—RNF+_A=Z+—H  KEHETE
R EEHERZHLE  MR_ZE—RF+=
A=+—HB AEBRITEFUAEBEHT
F4918,800,000 8 7T 2 WA EEIF - R F
—RNFE+ZA=+—8 BETHEMAEBEULE
B & T3R8 48,100,000 T(ZF — A F :
21,400,000 %70 ) fEH 3 o

HRRE

RIE—RF+-A=1+—H8 AEBITEF
RMEAKABE( T —RF  8) -

Hﬁ 4%\

EFESTEEREBEE T —R"FTA=+—
HIEFRERMERRE(ZF—0F : ) -

RERBFRE

ARARBR _E—LtFRAA-_TNB(EHA)
BOUERBFRAS((RREAFAE]) - WRE
FREBEBRBERRTETARARER
FEE AR T R P AG G

TENERREMERT

ARRMEREMEE —_F—tFAA-1+=
BEH ) E-T—tFRARA-TRBE(EY
) (BERMBBRERN)EEREZEER - MEM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE D

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT
POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of
32 (2015: 28) employees. Total staff costs for continuing
operations, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$16.1 million for the Year (2015:
approximately HK$16.0 million).

The emolument policy of the Group is determined with
reference to the performance, qualifications and experience
of individual employees (including Directors), as well as the
results of the Group and the market conditions. The Group
provides discretionary bonus, medical insurance, provident
fund, education subsidy and training to its employees.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEENEAERE

Directors

Executive Directors

Ms. Deng Shufen, aged 52, has been appointed as an
Executive Director since 16 July 2014. She is also the
Chairman and an Authorised Representative of the Company.
She has served as the general manager and the vice-chairman
of the board of directors of Huashang Group Company Limited
(ZEpg & ®E B R A a) since 1993 and the deputy general
manager of China Wood (Group) Company Limited* (FrEIAR
M(EB)BRAT) since 2006. Ms. Deng was also appointed
as the general manager of the legal department of China
Leasing Company Limited* (FBIFEEARAA]) in 2003 and
the vice-chairman of the board of directors of Jiangxi Juye
Asset Management Company Limited* CIFAR 2 EEETEH
fR/A7]) in 2006. She graduated from Jiangxi University (later
reorganized as Nanchang University) with a bachelor degree of
Law. Ms. Deng completed the EMBA at HKUST in 2016 and
was admitted to a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
(EMBA). Deng is also one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company by virtue of (i) the equity interest held by her in Sino
Merchant Car Rental Limited (“Sino Merchant”), the entire
issued share capital of which is owned as to 60% by Ms.
Deng and 40% by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (an Executive Director);
and (i) her deemed interests in certain issued shares in the
Company held by her spouse, Mr. Dai Yumin (an Executive
Director) under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

Ms. Wu Qiong, aged 38, was appointed as the CEO on 18
April 2016 and additionally appointed as an executive Director
on 3 June 2016. Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in
International Economic Law and a Master of Law degree,
both from the China University of Political Science and Law
(FRBEECEAE). From July 2001 to February 2005, Ms. Wu
was the vice president of Beijing Xin Zhong Hang Wu Zhou
Technology Company Limited* (4t R MBI AR A F)) .
Thereafter she became a lawyer in Beijing Century Law Firm
(bRt 42 A= FT) . Since May 2012 she has practised
law in B & J Partners Law Firm (3t M ARNEEEFT) . Ms.
Wu has also been appointed as the president of Phoenix
Asset Management Company Limited* (BIEIEEEIE AR A F])
starting from October 20183.

*

For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSRETEBNHAER

Ms. Liu Jiangyuan, aged 36, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 16 July 2014. Ms.
Liu also assumed various positions such as the executive
director of Chenxin Asset Management Company Limited”
(EFEEEEAR AR )and the assistant to the president of
China Aviation Finance Limited (R =& @AR 7). She
graduated from Dalian University of Foreign Language with a
bachelor degree of English.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Ho Kin Cheong Kelvin, aged 49, is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known
as Hong Kong Baptist University). Mr. Ho has over 26 years
of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the
Company, he was responsible for accounting, finance and
company secretarial matters for several listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Ho was an independent non-executive
director of Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited (now known as
ITC Properties Group Limited (Stock Code: 0199)) from 2001
to 2003.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Jun, aged 54, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
16 July 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has also served
as the executive member and the executive vice-chairman
of the Cross-straits Medicine Exchange Association of the
National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC*
(FEARANMBEBRRFEMNGFEEEZEQFRMEEEEFGE
RmEE), the executive member and the vice-chairman of
China Sexology Association (R E{%& <), the publisher and
the executive chief editor of the China Sexology Journal* ({#
HRIE)) and the deputy head of the Sexology Research Center
of Peking University Health Science Center* (it 7 A £ 88 &R 14
ERf7E AL ). Mr. Fang also assumed various positions such as
the executive member and the secretary general of Wu Jieping
Medical Foundation(R[f& FEE2EK ¢ ). He graduated from
Peking University Health Science Center with a master degree
of Social Medicine and Health Service Management and a
doctor degree of Epidemiology and Health Statistics.

*

For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEENEAERE

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 49, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
16 July 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He has served as
the president and the group chief financial officer of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited since 2011 and as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of KVB’s group company,
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited listed on the the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange since October 2014.
Mr. Wong has also served as the independent non-executive
director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited, Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited and
Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since 2011, 2016
and 2016 respectively; and the non-executive director of
Adamas Finance Asia Ltd (formerly known as China Private
Equity Investment Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of London Stock Exchange
Plc. and Frankfurt Stock Exchange) since 2014. He also
assumed various positions such as the executive director and
the chief financial officer of China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited, the chief financial officer of Hong Kong
Applied Science and Technology Research Institute Company
Limited, the vice president of Vertex Management (HK)., the
manager and head of supervision of the business department
of Guangdong Investment Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and the portfolio manager
of Transpac Capital Ltd. Mr. Wong graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of Business
Administration. He also obtained a master degree of Science
in Investment Management from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and a master degree of Science in
Electronic Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wong
is also a charter-holder of Chartered Financial Analyst and a
member of Hong Kong Securities Institute.

*

For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSRETEBNHAER

Mr. Zhao Xianming, aged 40, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 16
July 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He assumed various
positions such as the supervisor of the legal and auditorial
center of Fanhua Construction Group Limited* (ZEZEREBRAE
FfR/AA]), the general legal counsel, the vice-president and the
board secretary of China Agritech Inc. (a company listed on
the NASDAQ Stock Market). He graduated from China Foreign
Affairs University with a master degree of International Law and
is a certified enterprise risk manager.

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chen Xiaohang, aged 31, holds a master degree in
Global Communications from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor degrees in Broadcasting Journalism
and marketing from Wuhan University, and is pursuing a
master degree in Business Administration at the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. Ms. Chen had worked
in iPR Ogilvy, responsible for IPO public relations projects
and investor relations and media relations concerning listed
enterprises in Hong Kong. Then she joined NCF Media group
as acted as its co-chief executive officer.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2016. This report
highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company acknowledges the importance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures and regards
a pre-eminent board of directors, sound internal controls and
accountability to all shareholders as the core elements of its
corporate governance principles. The Company endeavours
to ensure that its businesses are conducted in accordance
with rules and regulations, and applicable codes and
standards. The Company has adopted the Code Provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The Board reviews at least annually the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure its continuous compliance
with the Code, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary. The Company was in compliance with the
applicable code provisions in the Code (the “Code Provision”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The following sections
set out the principles in the Code as they have been applied
by the Company, including any deviations therefrom, for the
year under review.

Board

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible
for overseeing the overall strategy and development of the
Company, as well as monitoring the internal control policies
and evaluating the financial performance of the Group. The
Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group
with a view to developing its business and enhancing the
shareholders’ value.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprises three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Board held a total of 9 meetings.
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TERERBE

During the Year, the attendance of each Director is set out

TR BEFHHEBEROT

below:
Meeting attended/
meetings entitled
to attend
BERHERY,
Director Ex BREERY
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Deng Shufen (Chairman) BRE L (EE) 8/9
Mr. Dai Yumin (retired on 3 June 2016) BEGRE(RZE—R"F~AA=REM) 4/6
Mr. Gui Bin (retired on 3 June 2016) T BEE(RZZE—R"ESA=ZHRME) 0/6
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan FTRaL 9/9
Ms. Wu Qiong (appointed on 3 June 2016 and 2 BUE(RZZT—R"FAAZHEZE:
redesignated from Chief Executive Officer to Vice WHRZF—RE\ATNHBETREHATRE
Chairman on 16 August 2016) E) 3/3
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Ho Kin Cheong, Kelvin MEELEE(RZE—RFHAT—HEZAE)
(appointed on 11 April 2016) 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Fang Jun 7ofREE 9/9
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest ERGEE 9/9
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLTE 9/9

Ms. Deng Shufen (the Chairman of the Group and an executive
Director) is the spouse of Mr. Dai Yumin (a former executive
Director). Save as disclosed, the members of the Board have
no financial, business, family or other relationships with each
other.

During the Year, the INEDs provided the Company with a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills and brought
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction,
development, performance and risk management through their
contribution at Board meetings and Committee meetings.
Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. The former Rule requires
that every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at
least three INEDs and the latter Rule requires that at least one
of the INEDs must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
All INEDs also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Further, up to the date of this report, the Board has not been
aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that their independence has been impaired.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company still considers such Directors
to be independent. The INEDs are explicitly identified in all
corporate communications. The day-to-day running of the
Company is delegated to the management.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual
operating budget, annual and interim results, recommendations
on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, material
contracts and transactions as well as other significant policy
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the management. The respective functions
of the Board and management of the Company have been
formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed by the
Board from time to time to ensure that they are consistent
with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such
other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comments before
being tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives
a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well
as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being
a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
and senior executives to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance/act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies, independent
auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. From time to time, Directors are
provided with written training materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the requirement of the Code on
continuous professional development during the year ended 31
December 2016:

e

fi= #&m

REARFFENTE  RTETRENEE
EERROBTE  EFNEE_T KX

A=+—HLFEE#E

XATNEER L™

ExmAe  BEKBEMEI

Ft+=

N

Corporate
Governance,
Regulatory
Development
and Trainings
or other
relevant topics
TEER

=

EERER
$E 2 = H Ath
Director = HEEER
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. Deng Shufen BOMES 2+ v
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan 2T R+ v
Ms. Wu Qiong R REL v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Ho Kin Cheong, Kelvin (BIc3=PHe v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Fang Jun 7ofREE v
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =R A v
Mr. Zhao Xianming fizh e v

Independent Non-executive Directors

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

BYFHITES

FEBMIFRTESARREMERE
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Committees

As part of the corporate governance practices, the Board
has established the remuneration committee, nomination
committee, and audit committee. All of the committees are
chaired by and composed of INEDs with terms of reference in
accordance with the principles set out in the Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) on 27 November 2009
with written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Fang Jun, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest and Mr. Zhao Xianming,
and is chaired by Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
formulating remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and made recommendation
on the remuneration packages of the existing Directors.

Details of the remuneration paid to members of the senior
management of the Group (including the Directors) by band for
the Year are set out below:
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=t HLEFE FHZEeRIRAESN
B IR R
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ZF S E S -

Number of
senior management

Remuneration band o &5 = EREEEZAH
Below HK$1,000,000 &7 1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # T2 1,500,000 78 7T 2
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SEEARE

During the Year, six Remuneration Committee meetings were FR - HFME %@ TTRNREH - TXET
held and the attendance of each member is set out below: %ﬁf@é-\ﬂ‘\]tljflﬁ/

Attendance
Committee Member ZE8 HEER
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chairman) ERGEE(EE) 6/6
Mr. Fang Jun 7oREE 6/6
Mr. Zhao Xianming HEEA LA 6/6
Nomination Committee REEEE

The Company established a nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) on 27 November 2009 with
written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2016, the
Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Fang Jun, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest and Mr. Zhao Xianming,
and is chaired by Mr. Fang Jun.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
relevant procedures for nomination of directors, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendations to the

Board.

RARARR_ZEEANF+—A-+TELEXIHEA
EnRREENREERZES((REEEE®])) -

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H REEZLEZH
REBR=-ZBEUIFNTESTHERLE =B
BEERBEREE - HEAEERZZEEN
EE e

m

REZEENIZBBARTETENRE
IR - BIERBEFNREEREF - Ve
BERATEEIREEFERE  URAESF
ELARIRESNER HE_T—RF
T-A=1t—HLHFE REZEERIES
AR RAESTSREER

ma}n}

%)

During the Year, six Nomination Committee meetings were FRN - RBEZEGRITTANRGE - TXH
held and the attendance of each member is set out below: %Jﬂi%ﬂ@ﬁf|ﬁxﬂ :

Attendance
Committee Member Z£8 HEBR
Mr. Fang Jun (Chairman) 7 OEEEERE) 6/6
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RAERE 6/6
Mr. Zhao Xianming B LA 6/6
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Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Zhao Xianming
(chairman), Mr. Fang Jun and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to supervise the
internal control policies, the financial reporting systems and
procedures of the Company, to review the financial statements
and reports of the Group, and to review the terms of
engagement and scope of audit work of the external auditors.
The audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, and reviewed the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, as well as the interim and annual results
of the Group, which, in the opinion of the audit committee,
were prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and the Listing Rules.

During the Year, three Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

BEREESG

ARAEZZES([BREEGDEE =4
BIYFATEFTHEERALLE(EZE)  FTkE
ERERGERE BERZEENIZRBRE
BARBNAREZEEE - MBRBRANIE
Fr BHASENSBEHREMBE - AR®
SMNEZBE N Z RGN MBZ TIENEE - &F
ZZEeEBHAKREHE TR+ _H
=+t RLEFENEEZYBERE

EREEEREANDZNERBAR LG
MEBFEHE TLENFEERE "2 —A
Et-A=t—BILFE R

BHE_ZT-—R"FTA=+—HILFE X
ZESERNASRENRREERAMEE R
o ARPHREFEE BERZEERS
ZEZEDRRBA S ERR ETRRIM R
8 o

FA - BRZEERTTZREHE - TXHT
EREMHFERR

Attendance
Committee Member £B5 HEER
Mr. Zhao Xianming (Chairman) THERALE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Fang Jun 7o ERAE 3/3
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =R E 3/3

Annual Report 2016 =& — /N E £ 3R



Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a corporate governance committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a corporate
governance committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an
emphasis on the Board’s quality, effective internal control,
stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders of the Company. The Board
strives to comply with the code provisions and reviews its
corporate governance policy regularly in order to maintain high
standards of business ethics and corporate governance, and
to ensure the full compliance of our operations with applicable
laws and regulations.

During the Year, members of the Board have reviewed and
discussed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance at regular board meetings.
They have also reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. The Board has reviewed the
code of conduct applicable to employees and directors setting
out the standards of behavior that the Company expects from
them and the guidelines on how they should handle different
situations in business dealings with the Group.
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Compliance with the Model Code Set
Out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company
periodically issues notices to the Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication
of announcements of results. The Company has confirmed,
having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have complied with the Model Code throughout the period
under review.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of the accounts of the Company. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
in the section “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

The Group’s external auditors provided the following services
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016:
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financial information.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted review of both design and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In
this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material
issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and
assess effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management
measures as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based
on the findings and recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as
the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered
the internal control and risk management systems effective
and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

HongDa Financial Holding Limited established its enterprise
risk management framework in 2016. While the Board has
the overall responsibility to ensure that sound and effective
internal controls are maintained, management is responsible
for designing and implementing an internal control system to
manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes,
risks are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated
treatments. Our risk management framework follows the COSO
Enterprise Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which
allows the Board and management to manage the risks of the
Group effectively. The Board receives regular reports through
the Audit Committee that oversights risk management and
internal audit functions.

Principal Risks
In the Year of 2016, the following principal risks of the Group

were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational
risks, financial risks and compliance risks.

Risk Areas Principal Risks
| B 3 B FERR
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Strategic Risks
e
price level

Investment risk, keen competition with existing and new competitors, customer
concentration risk, dependent on a few major suppliers, unable to increase or maintain

RERR HBEBELRFABFENMRET  FEPETER  FEIBEEMHER - BXEMN

AT EARKF

Operational Risks
&g [

Disruption of the information technology system, safety and compensation risk as for
motor vehicles operation, risk of inadequate monitoring of newly acquired business, risk

of inadequate insurance coverage as for motor vehicles

AMMBERENTE AERERZREEAR  EENKBERHETHAR -

XREBEETBHRAR

Financial Risks

ERR

Credit risk, interest rate risk, risk of irrecoverable unsecured loan receivable

f1 75 R SERERE - FIRER - SEU D E TR RS A R R

Compliance Risks
aH AR
company regulations and ordinances

Breach of employment related regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC, failure to comply
with relevant laws relating to car rental operation, changes in listing rules and relevant

EREBERTENEREBER RLBTARIEHEXBNEBRED - EHRAKER

NIV NSRS
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Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group maintains a risk
register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The
risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation
has been performed. This review process can ensure that the
Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense
that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their areas of responsibility
so that they can take follow-up actions in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk
management framework will be evaluated at least annually,
and periodic management meetings are held to update
the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management is
committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Group has established internal control procedures for
the handling and dissemination of inside information in order
to comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
internal control mechanism includes information flow and
reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure
procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s systems of internal
control and risk management annually and further enhance
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems as
appropriate.
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There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet
its needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review
the need for an internal audit function from time to time.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more members of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and the meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board will be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Communication with Shareholders and
Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements and press releases, is promptly posted on the
Group’s website at www.hongdafin.com. Shareholders can
also send enquiries to the Board or the Company Secretary,
and/or proposals to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting
for shareholders’ consideration by email at ir@hongdafin.com
or directly by raising questions at the annual general meeting
of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Investor Relations

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual
and interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
corporate website of the Company (www.hongdafin.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public
and the shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, there were no changes to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Leung Cho Tak,
Joseph, was appointed on 30 August 2014. He is a full time
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company. The Company Secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. The
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the year
under review.
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Corporate Profile

HongDa Financial Holding Limited (the “Company” or
“HongDa Financial” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) expedited its strategic transformation and actively
implemented its business reorganization. In October 2015,
the Group diversified into the financing services business in
Hong Kong and had, through a wholly-owned subsidiary,
successfully applied and obtained a money lenders license
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and commenced the provision of financing
services during the Year.

The Company has officially changed its name from “E-Rental
Car Company Limited” to “HongDa Financial Holding Limited”
in June 2016. The Company will strive to gain position in the
financing services market by providing flexible, convenient
and tailor-made services to raise accessibility to the Group’s
financing services.

About this Report

This is the Company’s first Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) report for public disclosure in accordance
with Appendix 27 in the ESG Reporting Guide issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
This report discloses ESG information of the Group from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

Feedback

We have aimed to make this report as accurate, clear and
concise as possible. Since this is our first ESG report, we
would highly appreciate any comments on improving the
content and delivery of the information provided in this report.
Any queries or suggestions regarding the content of this report
can be directed to:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HongDa Financial Holding Limited
Address:  Suites 3101-05, 31/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 3918 9100

Fax: (852) 3152 2889/3152 2890

Email: info@hongdafin.com

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

As a financial service firm, our operations are wholly office-
based. Our environmental impact is minor compared to that of
many other industries. Nevertheless, the Group conducts its
business with respect and consideration for the environment.
Ultimate responsibility for our environmental performance rests
with the Board and the CEO. Our management teams have
responsibility for the day-to-day management of environmental
risks and opportunities. For full details of our
corporate social responsibility policy, please visit our website

impacts,

under corporate policy section.

We are committed to minimising the impact that running
our business has on the environment and we encourage
our stakeholders to do the same. During the year, we
have complied with all applicable laws and regulations to
act in a socially responsible manner. To protect our global
environment, we have been striving to pursue recycling and
resources conservation.

To provide a safe and healthy workplace, as well as a
dynamic work environment for our employees, we place
great importance to our human resources management and
safety management. Last but not least, we believe that active
communication is the key to building better relationships with
our stakeholders. Though we do not maintain a wide range
of suppliers, we are committed to regular and transparent
communication with our stakeholders on all environmental,
social and governance related issues of our business.
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ETHICAL BUSINESS
Privacy

Data privacy has become critical issue for financial services
industry and the Group aims to be at the forefront of emerging
good practice. We have interactions with our customers on an
ongoing basis, dealing with enormous amount of customers’
and potential customers’ information during the assessment
process of the creditability and recoverability of loan
applicants. It is important that we handle their data with care.
The Group is committed to abide by the data privacy law,
namely, Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) in Hong
Kong. We keep our customers’ data in strict confidentiality
and unauthorized access is strictly prohibited.

Anti-Corruption

We have adopted a set of Code of Ethics, providing the
guiding principles for all employees to take the right action,
behave with integrity and honesty, treat people fairly, respect
diversity, obey all laws, accept accountability, communicate
openly, and always behave in a way that is beyond reproach.
In 2016, there were no reported cases of bribery.

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to encourage
employees, customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders who
deal with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence, about
misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in any matters related
to the Company. For full details of our whistleblowing policy,
please visit our company website under the corporate policy
section.
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Whistleblowers should make their reports to the Group Ethics
Committee (the “Committee”) for review. The Committee
consists of Executive Directors, CEO, Chief Financial Officer
as well as department heads. The Committee would assess
every report received through the general reporting channel to
decide if a full investigation is necessary. If there is sufficient
evidence to suggest that a case of possible criminal offence
or corruption exists, the matter would be reported to the
Independent Commission Against Corruption. Employees may
have a duty to report corruption to the authorities if required
to do so by local regulations.

Community Involvement

We assess local needs, promoted community involvement and
partner with domestic stakeholders around our operations
to improve educational, cultural and social development.
We encourage and support our employees’ engagement in
volunteering and local community work.

During the year, to promote heathy living and work-life
balance, employees were sponsored by the Group for
participation in various sports activities, such as the 2016
Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon and 2016 Hysan
Healthy Hike & Run organized by Action Asia Events.
Moreover, to support the education development in China,
the Company organized the employees to participate in the
Sowers Action 12km hiking activities for fund-raising and the
Company has been awarded a Fundraising Awards (Bronze
Foot) and a Corporate Participation Award (Bronze Foot).
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We acknowledge that the foundation to our success is our
employees. The Group employs 27 staff in Hong Kong, of
which 19 or 70% of them are senior to middle management
executives and 8 or 30% of them are frontline staff. 26% of
its workforce are aged 30 or below, while 56% are in the age
group of 31 to 50, and 18% are 51 or above. Our workforce
breakdown by gender is 48% male and 52% female. In terms
of educational profile, 89% of the employees have tertiary
qualifications or above and 11% of the employees have
secondary qualifications or below.

Each member of staff has a structured training and
development programme and personal development plan
based on their individual requirements and aspirations. During
the year, a total of more than 40 CPD hours were enrolled for
professional staff.

In 2016, the Group strictly complied to the Employment
Ordinance and relevant legislations in Hong Kong and did
not hire any child labour or forced labour. In 2016, the total
turnover rate for the company was 14.8%, among which 25%
were below 30 age group, 25% were within the 31 to 50 age
group, and 50% were above 51 age group. The total new
hire rate was 33.3%, among which 33.3% were below 30 age
group, and 66.7% were within 31 to 50 age group.

The Group is committed to creating a work environment free
of discrimination and harassment where everyone is treated
with dignity and respect. We would not tolerate discrimination
and harassment of any kind. All allegations of discrimination
and harassment would be investigated and, if appropriate,
disciplinary action would be taken. Anti-discrimination is also
an integral part of our recruitment, promotion and dismissal
practices and procedures. We ensure a fair work environment
for all our employees regardless of age, gender, family status,
sexual orientation, ethnicity and religion.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group values the health and well-being of its employees.
All cases of injury or accidents are required to be reported to
the Company and be individually assessed under the internal
guideline procedures. No work-related injuries or accidents
were reported during the year.

Since most of our employees are required to use computers
for a prolonged period, they are regularly reminded to remain a
good posture and maintain an appropriate viewing distance of
around 350mm to 600mm between their eyes and the screen.

Ventilation is in place with air conditioning which helps
maintain a thermally comfortable work environment and
remove or dilute airborne contaminants for our employees.
In addition, housekeeping is maintained in order to prevent
accidents in the workplace, facilitating an efficient operation of
the office.

RAISING ENVIRONMENTAL AWARENESS

In 2016, the company complied with environmental laws
and regulations in Hong Kong. There were no direct air and
greenhouse gas emissions from our operation. The sole energy
consumption was purchasing electricity. The total amount of
electricity consumption in 2016 was 19,262 kWh.

The Group has been striving to minimize the consumption of
natural resources and the generation of waste. We encourage
our staff to minimize pollution through promoting greener
transportation options. When making a business decision,
we would consider the environmental impact it might bring.
Moreover, we educate our staff at all levels to act in an
environmentally responsible manner and provide training
where necessary. Feedbacks are collected from staff for
improvements and we would review our policy by taking these
into consideration.
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The Group has incorporated a green office mechanism in daily
operations with an aim to reduce waste, conserve energy
and electricity. For example, we would relocate our old office
furniture as much as possible instead of throwing them away.
We encouraged the use of waste paper for printing and
copying, as well as double sided printing and copying. We
have set up recycling bins in our office to promote recycling
waste materials. To conserve energy and electricity, we would
turn off idle lighting, air conditioning and electrical appliances.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 7 of this
annual report and in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 8 to 16 of this annual report. Description of the
principal risk areas of the Group can be found under the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” section in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 31. Description of the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be
found in note 40 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 72 to 218.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the
public as at the date of this annual report.
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Share Capital, Share Options, Warrants
and Convertible Bonds

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital,
warrants, and share options during the Year are set out in
notes 30, 31 and 28 to the financial statements, respectively.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the Year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on pages 219 to
220. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, other reserves and accumulated losses. As at 31
December 2016, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$806,264,640 (2015: HK$867,125,857).

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 99% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 75%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 82% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 30%.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Deng Shufen (Chairman)

Ms. Wu Qiong (appointed on 3 June 2016 and redesignated
from Chief Executive Officer to Vice-Chairman on 16 August
2016)

Ms. Liu Jiangyuan

Mr. Dai Yumin (retired on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Gui Bin (retired on 3 June 2016)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Ho Kin Cheong, Kelvin (appointed on 11 April 2016)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Jun
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest
Mr. Zhao Xianming

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest and Mr. Zhao
Xianming will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting;
and in accordance with Article 83(3), Ms. Wu Qiong will retire
at the annual general meeting. All of them, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be
independent as at the date of this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 20 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Contract of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the Group is determined with
reference to the performance, qualifications and experience
of individual employees (including Directors), as well as the
results of the Group and the market conditions. The Group
provides discretionary bonus, medical insurance, provident
fund, education subsidy and training to its employees. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to eligible participants, details of which are set out below in
the section “Share Option Scheme”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors in the share capital of the Company and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SF0”)), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted
by the Company, were as follows:

EERAQARS - HERSG R
BENWEERAR

R-B—RNE+-_A=+—80 B2RAAF
BARAQNRKEFEMBEEZRM(EERELFR
HIERAI([EHRBEMRG ) EXVED) K HEED
B REHFF  BEARARABREBEES RBAKK
155 352 1§ 7B 17 B M) & iR it SR 3B A 1 A1 4R
B EMRAIMEE T FT#E LR ITAESHTE
(X HHRETA([BESFA]DEMERAA
REBBAERSGMBRAR(BRAT]) KR
KORBIT -

Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued share

Number of capital
Shares (Note 2)
Name of interested HARATE&IT
Director Capacity/Nature of interests EEERND BAME DL
EEHA B RERtE BRHEAR (ffIzE2)
Ms. Deng Shufen (Note 1) Interests of controlled corporation 3,899,233,889 59.98%

oM 2 (fFE1) REES A BB ER
Interests of spouse 24,300,000 0.37%

JigE v

Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (Note 1) Interests of controlled corporation 3,899,233,889 59.98%

BB+ (ME1)
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Notes:

@)

These 3,899,233,889 Shares are registered in the name of
Sino Merchant, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is owned as
to 60% by Ms. Deng Shufen (the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company) and 40% by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (an
Executive Director of the Company). Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms.
Liu Jiangyuan are deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Sino Merchant is interested by virtue of the SFO.

In addition, Options were granted by the Company to Sino
Merchant pursuant to and upon completion of the Connected
Placing on 15 June 2015, which entitled it to subscribe for
up to 800,000,000 Option Shares (representing approximately
12.34% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2016) during the period of 24 months from 15
June 2015 to 14 June 2017 at the exercise price of HK$0.26
per Option Share (subject to adjustment). On 2 July 2015,
Sino Merchant partially exercised the Options to subscribe
for 400,000,000 new Shares. As at 31 December 2016, Sino
Merchant remained the beneficial owner of, and was interested
in, 400,000,000 Option Shares. Accordingly, each of Ms. Deng
Shufen and Ms. Liu Jiangyuan is also deemed to be interested
in these underlying Shares held by Sino Merchant for the
purposes of the SFO.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
6,501,415,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
respective associates had registered any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code adopted by the

Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other FERERHMWATHREAQTRK
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions - HHERORESHNESZ R A
in Shares, Underlying Shares and &
Debentures of the Company

RZE-—RNF+_RA=+—H BEEmMH "
THAL(RRARESZRIN RA QB HAE
MR P EENEEIORE ((EARFEETR
REFESE% HIA L) B LHE N AR R RIBIEE S
KRB 5P 336 RFENERMA

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
total issued share capital of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

Corporation

FRRGTEEEEAR

Annual Report 2016 =& — X FF I

interests in shares

REhBEEEFERZ AL

(1) Long position in the Shares: (1) BREOWEFE:
Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued share
Number of capital
Shares (Note 3)
Name of Capacity/Nature interested AR ATE&IT
Substantial Shareholder of interests BEERERD REANE DL
FTERRERE 5%, EEHtE R&OEAR (PfI3E3)
Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited Beneficial owner 3,899,2383,889 59.98%
(Note 1)
EABEAR AT (M) EmEaE
Mr. Dai Yumin (Note 1) Interests of spouse 3,899,233,889 59.98%
HESHEEMTE) B #ER
Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.37%
EnieE
Dundee Greentech Limited Beneficial owner 789,500,000 12.14%
(Note 2) (Kft7E2) Exiesd
China Orient Asset Management Person having securities 2,261,473,889 34.78%



(2)

Interests in share options of the Company

In addition, Options were granted by the Company to
Sino Merchant pursuant to and upon completion of the
Connected Placing on 15 June 2015, which entitled it to
subscribe for up to 800,000,000 Option Shares during
the period of 24 months from 15 June 2015 to 14
June 2017 at the exercise price of HK$0.26 per Option
Share (subject to adjustment). On 2 July 2015, Sino
Merchant partially exercised the Options to subscribe
for 400,000,000 new Shares. As at 31 December 2016,
Sino Merchant remains the beneficial owner of, and was
interested in, 400,000,000 Option Shares.

Notes:

(1) These 3,899,233,889 Shares and the underlying Shares
referred to in the paragraph headed “Interests in share
options of the Company” above are registered in the
name of Sino Merchant, the entire issued share capital
of which is owned as to 60% by Ms. Deng Shufen (the
chairman and an executive director of the Company)
and 40% by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (an executive director of
the Company). Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms. Liu Jiangyuan
are deemed to be interested in all the Shares and
underlying Shares in which Sino Merchant is interested
by virtue of the SFO. As Mr. Dai Yumin is the spouse
of Ms. Deng Shufen, he is deemed to be interested in
the Shares and the underlying Shares which Ms. Deng
Shufen is deemed to be interested in for the purposes
of the SFO.

(2) These 789,500,000 Shares are registered in the name
of Dundee Greentech Limited (a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands), the entire issued share
capital of which is held by Mr. Liu Hailong.

(3) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the
basis of 6,501,415,000 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no
person (other than the Directors whose interests are set
out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company” above) had registered an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register
of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

(2)
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), which was approved by a written resolution of the
shareholders of the Company and adopted by the Board on
27 November 2009, for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group. The terms of the Scheme comply with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer option (the
“Options”) to subscribe for such number of shares in the
Company (the “Shares”) in accordance with the terms set
out in the Scheme to any proposed or existing director,
manager or other employee of the Group; any shareholder
of the Company; any supplier of goods or services to the
Group; any customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, or agent of any member of the
Group; any person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group;
and any associate of any of the foregoing persons.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Scheme shall not exceed 60,000,000 Shares, being 10% of
total issued Shares as at the date of listing.

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of offer.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an Option. The maximum entitlement of each
participant shall not in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in
the offer to a grantee, there is no minimum period under the
Scheme for holding an Option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price is determined based on the higher of (i)
the nominal value of the Shares; (i) the closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer; or (iii) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer.

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 26
November 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, no Option was granted
under the Scheme. In addition, there were no outstanding
Options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2016.

Share Options Under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement

On 11 August 2011, Perception Digital Technology (BVI)
Ltd. (“PDBVI”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a supply chain management agreement
(the “Supply Chain Agreement”) with Teleepoch Limited
(“Teleepoch”) pursuant to which PDBVI, together with its
subsidiaries, will act as the exclusive supply chain partner
of Teleepoch for a term of three years. In consideration of
Teleepoch entering into the Supply Chain Agreement, the
Company entered into an option agreement with Teleepoch,
pursuant to which the Company granted an option to
Teleepoch, entitling Teleepoch to subscribe for a maximum of
15,500,000 shares of the Company (the “Upfront Option”),
representing approximately 2.5% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company, at the exercisable price of
HK$0.38 per share. The Upfront Option was vested on
11 November 2011 and is exercisable in whole or in part
during the period from 11 November 2011 to 10 August
2016. In 2013, the Company completed an open offer
whereby the exercise price and the number of shares that
may be subscribed under the Upfront Option were adjusted
to HK$0.351 and 16,800,450, respectively. In 2014, the
Company completed another open offer whereby the exercise
price and the number of shares that may be subscribed under
the Upfront Option were further adjusted to HK$0.233 and
25,277,957, respectively.

In addition to the Up Front Option, the Company also
conditionally granted to Teleepoch an option to subscribe for
0.285 shares of the Company (the “Performance Option”)
at the exercise price of HK$0.38 for every HK$1.0 of net
profit to the Company generated from sales orders placed
by the clients of Teleepoch (“Performance Benchmark”),
subject to a maximum of 46,750,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 7.5% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company. On each anniversary date
during the term of the Supply Chain Management Agreement,
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a portion of the Performance Option shall be vested and
become exercisable. The number of shares which Teleepoch
will be entitled to subscribe for pursuant to such vested
portion of the Performance Option shall be determined by
reference to the Performance Benchmark for the previous year
(the “Vesting Condition”). Subject to such Vesting Condition,
the Performance Option may be exercised in whole or in part
at any time during the period from 11 August 2012 to 10
August 2016. In 2013, the Company completed an open offer
whereby the exercise price and the number of shares that
may be subscribed under the Performance Option, subject
to the Vesting Condition, were adjusted to HK$0.351 and
50,672,325, respectively. In 2014, the Company completed
another open offer whereby the exercise price and the number
of shares that may be subscribed under the Performance
Option, subject to the Vesting Condition, were further adjusted
to HK$0.233 and 76,241,580, respectively.

At 31 December 2016, all the outstanding share options under
the scheme lapsed.

Other Share Options

Pursuant to the completion of the Connected Placing on 15
June 2015, the Company has granted to Sino Merchant the
Options which carry rights to subscribe for up to 800,000,000
Option Shares at the initial exercise price of HK$0.26 per
Option Share upon exercise of such Options within the
exercise period commencing on 15 June 2015 (the “Initial
Issue Date”) and ending on the last day of the twenty-fourth
(24th) months from the Initial Issue Date (both days inclusive).
For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 27 March 2015 and 15 June 2015 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 April 2015.
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Details of the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2016
are as follows:

Number of
Options
BREZE
At

31 December

Exercise price

TfEE

Date of grant

B A

HK$0.26
0.26 7T

15 June 2015
—T-—HFX A+HH

400,000,000

Warrants

The subscription price of the outstanding warrants was
adjusted from HK$0.12 per share to HK$0.11 per share as a
result of the Connected Placing. Details of which are set out in
the announcement dated 15 June 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the subscription price of the
outstanding 132,755,454 (2015: 152,795,454) warrants was
HK$0.11 per share.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

There has been no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision had been in force
throughout the Year and up to the date of this report. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 is disclosed in Note
37 to the financial statements.

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in
note 37 to the financial statements for the Year constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

Events after the reporting period

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

Environmental, Society and Corporate

Responsibility

The environmental, social and governance Report is set out on
pages 36 to 43 of this annual report.

Compliance with laws, rules and

regulations

The Company encourages its employees to understand,
comply with and keep themselves abreast of the laws,
rules and regulations applicable to their positions and the
operation of the businesses of the Group as any violation
could jeopardize the integrity of the Group. The Company
has employed suitable personnel and engaged professional
advisers as and when appropriate to provide legal advice on
the applicability, existence or interpretation of any laws, rules
and regulations. The Board is not aware of any violation of the
applicable laws, rules and regulations that had a significant
impact on the business and/or operation of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including but not limited employees, customers,
bankers, service providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s
human resources management is to reward and recognise our
employees by providing a competitive remuneration package,
appropriate incentives, and opportunities within the Group for
career advancement.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and
asset growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers

To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access,
the Group has maintained excellent relationship with our
bankers and has been soliciting funds from our bankers as
and when necessary.

Service Providers

The Group’s good relationships with its key service providers
are important in provision of effective and efficient services
to our customers and meeting business challenges. The key
service providers comprise system and equipment vendors,
external consultants which provide professional services, and
other business partners which provide value-added services to
the Group.

Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance
corporate value to our shareholders. Description of the
shareholders’ rights and our investor relations can be found in
the section of “Corporate Governance Report’ on pages 21
to 35 of this annual report.
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Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditors of
the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has been no
change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
years since the Listing.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Deng Shufen
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% BUED

e
EY::

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HongDa Financial Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 218, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Sstatements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)
1B AR BB R4 o

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Impairment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had outstanding
trade receivables amounting
to HK$1,099,418,264.
Significant management
judgement is required in
determining the recoverability
of the trade receivables,
with reference to factors
such as the background and
repayment capacity of the
debtors and the likelihood of
default. Major debtors of the
Group as at 31 December
2016 mainly represented
trade receivables due from
independent third parties in
connection with materials
trading.

Disclosures in relation to
the trade receivables are
set out in notes 3 and 20
to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We evaluated and tested
the Group’s processes and
controls over the approval
and recording of the

trade receivables and the
assessment of impairment.

We also tested the aged
analysis of the receivables
and evaluated the
assumptions used in
management’s impairment
assessment. This included
examining the background
information, repayment
capacity and the repayment
history of the debtors.

We then assessed the related
disclosures of the trade
receivables in the financial
statements.
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To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report continued)
B AR BB R4 o

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters
(continued)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matters
(continued)

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property,

plant and equipment of the car rental segment

As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had goodwill
before impairment of
HK$24,263,284, intangible
assets comprising of a
vehicle rental business
license before impairment
of HK$46,619,207 and
vehicle license plates
before impairment of
HK$14,603,607, and
property, plant and
equipment before impairment
of HK$28,289,529.

The Group determines
whether the goodwill, the
intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and
the property, plant and
equipment are impaired at
least on an annual basis,
assisted by an external
valuation expert. This
requires an estimation of
the value in use using cash
flow projections of the cash-
generating unit to which
the goodwill, the intangible
assets and the property,
plant and equipment are
allocated.

We evaluated the objectivity,
independence and
competency of the valuer.
We involved our internal
valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating and
testing the assumptions

and methodologies used

by management in their
impairment assessment.

For management’s
assumptions on the
budgeted revenue growth
and profit margins of the
car rental cash-generating
unit, our procedures
included making reference
to the historical results

and the results of other
comparable companies. For
the discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections,
we assessed the inputs
used to determine the rate,
which included referencing
to market data and to
comparable companies. We
also evaluated the sensitivity
of management estimates
and assumptions used in the
cash flow projections.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)

8 3 A% BT8R o o

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed

(continued) the key audit matters
(continued)

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment of the car rental segment (continued)
The impairment assessment We then assessed the
process is complex, contains related disclosures of the
items based on judgement goodwill, intangible assets
and property, plant and

equipment in the financial

and is based on assumptions
that are affected by expected
future market conditions. statements.
Based on management’s

assessment, a full

provision for impairment

of HK$24,263,284 and

provisions for impairment

of HK$10,589,831,

HK$3,317,297 and

HK$6,426,135 were made

in the current year against

goodwill, vehicle rental

business license, vehicle

license plates and property,

plant and equipment,

respectively.

The related disclosures

of property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and
intangible assets are set out
in notes 3, 13, 14 and 15
to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)
B AR BB R4 o

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters
(continued)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matters
(continued)

Fair value and impairment of an available-for-sale

investment

Included in the Group’s
available-for-sale investments
as at 31 December 2016 is
a 10% equity interest in a
private company, Prime Elite
Ventures Limited (“Prime
Elite”). The investment is
carried at fair value. If the
investment is impaired, the
impairment is reflected in the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Determining fair value

and the assessment of
impairment is complex. This
includes the preparation of

a cash flow projection which
contains items based on
judgement and is based on
assumptions that are affected
by expected future market
conditions.

We evaluated the objectivity,
independence and
competency of the valuer.
We involved our internal
valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
valuation methodology

and assumptions adopted
by management for the
discounted cash flow
projection. As part of these
procedures, we evaluated
the key inputs used in the
valuation such as the terminal
growth rate and discount
rate by making reference

to external comparable

data. We also evaluated
management’s impairment
assessment, which also took
into account other qualitative
factors in the assessment
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)
1B AR BB R4 o

FELETRERBRARIMLKRER
(RESHETMEA LA EFRLAE])

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued) FAEERXEIE5)

How our audit addressed BEEREEZ) EENERNMAEREZ

HEELER(E)

Key audit matters
(continued) the key audit matters
(continued)

AHHEREN A FERBEE)

Fair value and impairment of an available-for-sale

investment (continued)

To support management’s We then assessed the related AEEREEELR Hig ESTHEH
determination of the fair disclosures, including the TE BEEEZES HEER B8ERAK
value, management engaged disclosure of the sensitivity VEESERMGEM  FEI9FRGFRESTR
an independent professional analysis and the fair value HHREHRMAHE AFEFTEEREOE
qualified valuer to perform a measurement hierarchy in EREHETHE - = o

valuation of the available-for-
sale investment at the end of

note 39.

REEEEEEAR

the reporting period. T E &R E R A
R AFERZEE
Based on management’s TEH & %R B & E

determination of the fair
value and their impairment
assessment, a full
provision for impairment of
HK$38,918,740 was made
against this investment
during the year.

The related disclosures are
set out in notes 3, 17 and 39
to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report «ontinued)

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)
1B M % B R o

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for
the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Qur report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued)
1B AR BB R4 o

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content

of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report «ontinued)

To the shareholders of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Leung, Chi Kit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

M A 4= 32
%mﬁﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2016
HEZ ANEF+ZA=1+—HIFE

BE_ZT

2016 2015
—E-RE¥ “E—HF
Notes HK$ HK$
By & BT BT
(Restated)
(/=&7))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
REVENUE W & 5 3,246,906,008 271,220,536
Cost of sales SHE AN (3,114,871,260)  (247,819,646)
Gross profit EF 132,034,748 23,400,890
Other income and gains, net H g A R Wi as 558 5 6,220,993 26,639,581
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAT (2,488,228) (3,214,820)
General and administrative expenses — M RITIRE R (34,824,382) (33,578,226)
Other expenses, net Hih X %% (83,531,148) (160,606)
Finance costs B AR 6 (33,677,555) (1,886,327)
Share of loss of a joint venture BiE—REERRER (3,123,146) (7,854,777)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM BECEER 2 BRBARR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (BR) 7 (19,388,718) 3,345,715
Income tax expense FTiSHiA Y 10 (12,015,954) (2,862,100)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM BELEER 2 ERNER/
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (BR) (31,404,672) 483,615
Discontinued Operation CRIEREER
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation 2 48 | &2 & % 7 7 F N &5 18 11 (828,460) (11,044,111)
Gain on disposal of a discontinued operation H&E D& IFEEER 2 I 15,603,267 2,982,161
14,774,807 (8,061,950)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (16,629,865) (7,578,335)
Attributable to: PATRE T fEM, -
Owners of the parent ISUNCIEZZ DN (16,629,865) (7,578,335)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREBERRESEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEESRET(BE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted BEARKEE
— For loss for the year — FRER HK(0.26) cent HK(0.14) cent
Bl pqll
— For profit/(loss) from continuing operations — &KL ¥ 7 %R/ HK(0.48) cent HK0.01 cent
(E#8) Bl AL
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Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWAR

Year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T—R"F+-_A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E-KEF —ET—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (16,629,865) (7,578,335)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ HttZHEBA(EBE)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REBBEBENSEZER
to be reclassified to profit or loss ZEMmEEmKRA(EIE)
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investment: AHEERE -
Change in fair value NSRS (39,987,400) 1,187,400
Reclassification adjustment for loss included #FLst A4RE1ER K 2 B8
in the consolidated statement of profit EFOERAR
or loss 38,918,740 —
Income tax effect Fris i s & - (118,740)
(1,068,660) 1,068,660
Exchange differences: MEH R
Exchange differences on translation MBS INETS VB X Z 5
of foreign operations (9,232,125) (282,671)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign RFEHE—BRINEBEH
operation disposed of during the year B HERAR - (2,797,029)
(9,232,125) (3,079,700)

Net other comprehensive loss

RERBEBER D BERD L

to be reclassified to profit or loss HM2HEEEFRE

in subsequent periods (10,300,785) (2,011,040)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMZEERER  KRBi#

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (10,300,785) (2,011,040)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREEEBERE

FOR THE YEAR (26,930,650) (9,589,375)
Attributable to: A& e :

Owners of the parent SRARHEAR A (26,930,650) (9,589,375)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE AR R
31 December 2016
—E—RFt+=-A= H

2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—hiF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 3E BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mk 13 23,866,795 37,870,159
Goodwill SRS 14 - 26,210,338
Intangible assets A 15 47,315,686 68,670,000
Interest in a joint venture R—RELRAINER 16 7,880,984 10,163,742
Long term deposits %S 22 6,804,775 3,095,346
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 17 112,000,000 39,987,400
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 197,868,240 185,996,985
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 5,193,443 1,293,115
Trade receivables JE ULBR 5k 20 1,099,418,264 250,161,834
Loan receivables EUE 21 - 111,835,710
Prepayments, deposits and other TERHIE ek
receivables H 4th e W 5RIR 22 13,046,900 460,929,350
Tax recoverable A] R B F 18 141,476 206,638
Pledged bank deposit BEHEFIRITFR 24 - 18,794,078
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEY 24 39,482,564 5,050,455
Total current assets MEEELE 1,157,282,647 848,271,180
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FETBR K 25 386,022 34,305,597
Other payables and accruals F 5 5RIE R FE AT SRR 26 18,895,162 15,583,694
Interest-bearing bank and other SFRIRITREMES
borrowings 27 180,528,860 26,109,159
Tax payable eI IR 17,728,062 4,408,273
Total current liabilities BB EH A 217,538,106 80,401,723
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 939,744,541 767,869,457
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAE
LIABILITIES 1,137,612,781 953,866,442
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IS IR R

31 December 2016

—E—RFt+-H=+1 =)
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZT—HhF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 78 JT B JT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing other borrowings EHMEE 27 6,300,524 5,404,574
Derivative financial instruments TEemI A 28 63,586,000 —
Convertible bonds Al ES 28 147,653,618 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 29 13,931,809 17,694,788
Total non-current liabilities B B ERR 231,471,951 22,999,362
Net assets EEFE 906,140,830 930,867,080
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the R RAEA AEIGEZ
parent
Issued capital B EITIRA 30 65,014,150 64,813,750
Reserves 1 32 841,126,680 866,053,330
Total equity g k] 906,140,830 930,867,080

Deng Shufen
WMZF
Chairman and Executive Director

FTERPITEE

Liu Jiangyuan
2%
Executive Director

HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE—_ZT—XRF+=A8

=t—HIFE

Capital
reserve

g 2

HKS
BT
(note 32)
(PzEa2)

Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation
reserve

THEERE

Eftef
HKS

BT

Exchange
fluctuation Accumulated Total
reserve losses equity

EXNEsE  EHEE 4

HKS$ HKS HKS
AT A

At 1 January 2015

Loss for the year
QOther comprehensive income
for the year:
— Changes in fair value
of available-for-sale
investment, net of tax
— Release of exchange
fluctuation reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries
— Exchange differences
on translation of foreign
operations

R=%-1%-A-A

ERER
EREMEENA:

- HHERE
AYERY
i3

- HEMBAFR
BEELRSE
f

- INFHNEL
£8

43,823,276

1,068,660

2,865,445 (166,604,145) 301,941,139

(7578335 (7,678,3%)

- ~ 1,068,660
(2,797,029) - (797,029
(282,671) - 6T)

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Release of capital reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries

EREENN/(BR)
5%

LU

RIVEER

HENEATRED
E1filR

24,000,000 508,000,000

(3,646,306)

1,068,660

(3,079,700)  (7,578,335)  (9,589,375)
= — 644,000,000
= - (5,484,684)

- 3,646,306 =

At 31 December 2015
and at 1 January 2016

NZE-1%
tZA=t-Ak
“E-5

-A-H

64,813,750  874,704,786"

40,176,970°

1,068,660°

(214,255 (170,536, 174)" 930,867,080
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAMKBIE

Year ended 81 December 2016

i j:—j; /\i ( — A= ( *E{ﬂii&g
Available-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Exchange
Issued  premium Capital Warrant option revaluation  fluctuation Accumulated Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses equity
L ERE
BRfRA  ROGEE  AARE DREIRE BRERE  EfEE ENRBEE  ZHEE ks
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
Btz AT AT BT A BT BT BT BT AT
(note 32) (note 30) (note 31)
fikso)  (MiEs0)  (BraEst
At31 December 2015 and at -~ A=F-1F
1 January 2016 + RA=+-8k
ZE-E-A-H 64,813,750 874,704,786* 40,176,970  7,048,243* 113,805,100* 1,068,660* (214,255)* (170,536,174)* 930,867,080
Loss for the year EQER - - - - - - - (16,629,865 (16,629,865)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ EREM2ERA :
the year.
Change in fair value of THHERAATE
avalable-for-sale 29 Bk
investment, net of tax - - - - - (39,987,400) - - (39,987,400)
Rechssfication adjustment ~ sASABARER
for loss included in LENABRE
consolidated statement
of proft or loss - - - - - 38,918,740 - - 38,918,740
Exchange differences on BASR EREE
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - - (9,232,125) - (9,232,125)
Total comprehensive loss for A2 EBELE
the year - - - - - (1,068,660) (9,232,125) (16,629,865) (26,930,650)
Issue of shares upon exercise {76 RRIER K 30
of warrants ik 200400 2,928,417 - (924417) - - - - 2,204,400
Release of capital reserve upon  HEHBAFEEE
disposal of subsidiaries BhrRE - - (40,176,970) - - - - 40,176,970 -
Transfer of share option EREERGERE
reserve upon the expiry of RiEfE
share options - - - - (1,805,100) - - 1,805,100 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-nE
+-A=1-H 65,014,150 877,633,208 - 6,123,826 112,000,000* = (0,446,380)* (145,183,969)* 906,140,830
B These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of . %5 R R R E R S BB R R AR R
HK$841,126,680 (2015: HK$866,053,330) in the consolidated & f# 841,126,680 T(= T — & F -
statement of financial position. 866,053,330 87T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IE%/)ILE%E

an\
Year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_ZT—R"F+H= HIEFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hiF
Notes HK$ HK$
s BT B
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB AR T, (E518)
From continuing operations FEREXERS (19,388,718) 3,345,715
From a discontinued operation BEAR | T 11 14,774,807 (8,061,681)
Adjustments for: KA TR B -
Finance costs & KA 33,681,216 1,900,535
Share of loss of a joint venture B —xR&&EQRIEE 3,123,146 7,854,777
Interest income B WA (8,521,119) (7,579,927)
Depreciation e 11,546,150 12,137,073
Amortisation of deferred development i A [ B B A 22
costs - 1,098,296
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A A A e 11 (15,603,267) (2,982,161)
Write-off of items of property, YIZE - BB R ETE B M
plant and equipment Fic| - 228,764
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEMR - BB K& BA
property, plant and equipment, net BREE (=) F5E (1,551,945) 285,093
Impairment of other receivables E b pE W IR R E - 298,159
Impairment of goodwill 2 RE 7 24,263,284 =
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BERZERE
equipment 7 6,426,135 —
Impairment of intangible assets mRAERE 7 13,907,128 -
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHERERE
investment 7 38,918,740 —
Fair value gain on derivative BRARHRRE S 2 OTE B
financial instruments in relation BLAZzAFEYE
to convertible bonds 7 (1,847,000) —
Gain on disposal of an equity investment &R AFEF AR 2
at fair value through profit or loss S &QZHQ 7 (63,931) —
Write-down of inventories WO TF & = #37FEF
to net realisable value, net Lo - 9,322
Write-off of a deposit MEHIZ S - 10,500
Write-off of inventories/materials Wi B / M 7 15,861 106,625
99,680,487 8,651,090
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (35 m) (4,766,452) 966,351
Increase in trade receivables P U5 BR SR N (857,679,441)  (39,578,835)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTFRIA « RS RE MU
deposits and other receivables w\lﬁiﬂi/(i*bﬂ) 434,858,828 (380,775,574)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables  FEUE ZOR A,/ (3&Hn) 109,470,000 (109,470,000)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FETBRFRIE M0, (R ) (1,381,095) 338,578
Increase in other payables and accruals £ { & {<t 5178 K fig 51 7k I8 1%
on 3,154,918 3,858,118
Cash used in operations LEESTAR S (216,662,755) (516,010,272)
Interest received AR 10,796,145 5,172,893
Overseas taxes paid Eﬁ}ﬁﬂ\ﬁlﬁ (7,509) (851,794)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBHER (2,297,635) —

Net cash flows used in operating activities L& EEFTRAE LR EFE

(208,171,754)

(511,689,173)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AeRETRER

Year ended 31 December 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Disposal of subsidiaries

Purchases of items of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Increase in an amount due from a joint

venture

Purchase of an equity investment at fair

value through profit or loss

Purchase of an available-for-sale

investment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-

sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of an equity
investment at fair value through profit or

loss

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank

deposit
Interest received

REZBNRSRE

& K A A
BEME  BELREHEEB

HEME - BEMEHEE
B FT S50

o B — S M B A A

FEY — K& &R RIFKIBE M
BERAFEAABRRZE
@i E
BEAHOERE

hE R EREMER
I8

A A A S
XA E Y FEH0R

ERRITEZRD,(E )
[RLLGUES)

BEZT—RF+ZH= HIEFE

2016 2015

—E—XREF —T—FRF

Notes HK$ HK$
My7E BT BT

33(b) (300,354) (7,3083,206)

(5,978,557)  (10,462,904)

2,153,618 2,551,029

— (61,049,505)

(840,388) (4,330,218)

(7,647,480) —

(112,000,000) (39,544,600)

- 1,116,900
7,711,411 —
18,794,078 (18,794,078)

90,684 41,324

Net cash flows used in investing activities

RETHMARSREFHE

(98,016,988) (137,775,258)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETHNRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITR M TS 5RIE 30 — 644,000,000
Proceeds from issue of shares upon ITERREERRBEITRD Z

exercise of warrants FriS 508 30 2,204,400 =
Share issue expenses BHETER 30 - (5,484,684)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds Z%1T ] #A AR (& 5 2 P15 5018 199,686,946 —
New other borrowings* I EMEE 150,580,800 18,612,360
Repayment of other borrowings* EEHMmER" (8,927,977)  (27,930,686)
New bank loans g IRITE K 23,328,000 19,065,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (18,079,200) =
Interests and bank charges paid B F B RIRTTIR B (8,285,654) (1,900,535)
Net cash flows from financing activities Bt & EEFTISE & R EF 5 340,507,315 646,361,455
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ IE:%/)H:E'IH’%

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—AF+-A=1+—HIEFE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
B = BT BT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RE&RBEEZEY®EM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R )8 34,318,573 (3,102,976)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of £4138 & kIR & ZHEY
year 5,050,455 8,090,982
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, &R &)z 255
net 113,536 62,449
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 39,482,564 5,050,455
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HERBELSZEYEBIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1TH 24 35,037,364 5,050,455
Non-pledged time deposits with original 88 A i R 2| El CR=1E A
maturities of less than three months E’Jﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
when acquired 24 4,445,200 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESREELEEY
AT END OF YEAR 39,482,564 5,050,455
* Including cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding * BEEANBEEE A EHAEN T HiHE
liabilities relating to arrangements which are in substance MARBEABZREMN -

finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

HongDa Financial Holding Limited (the “Company”)
(formerly known as E-Rental Car Company Limited) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is
located at Suites 3101-3105, 31/F, Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were primarily
involved in the provision of car rental services; materials
trading and financing services.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

alj

'

NAIRE

i

ShESBMERAERAR(ARE DA
BMEMEMBHEEAERLAFE—RER
FMEHSAMKINER AR - KQFA]
= i 9% = 5 &9 #b 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands  RARIERER F E L E B
R EBEFELITE108HR AT A
003118 3101-3105 % ©

FR AR RAMERR (GBI A%
BEBREREAERERSE B
25 REBRS -
FRMEARNESR

ARRBEENMBRBFBFOT

as follows:
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration and registered VNN
business share capital EhEERADL
Name ML BRTEER/ Direct  Indirect Principal activities
AR AR AR i B =t fit AR A E# EiE TEER
Ace Leader (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100  Provision of financing services
HE(BE)ARAR B 187 RS RRS
HongDa Financial Hong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 = Materials trading and
Kong Company Limited e (2015: HK$1) provision of intercompany
(formerly known as 10,000,000 % 7T management services
China E-Rental Hong (ZZ—A%F: MHESR
Kong Company Limited) 17%87) AEEREEERY

hEERABERAA
(Fi%& China E-Rental
Hong Kong Company
Limited)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+=-A= H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

NAIREEER &)

BEEMWE QR WER (5

Percentage of

Place of Issued equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration and registered VN
business share capital EEEZE DL

Name ML BRITLER/ Direct Indirect Principal activities

£ o T A 3t B at i iR A E# CIE TEXK

HongDa International Hong Kong HK$1 — 100 Materials trading
Finance Limited (formerly B0 1587 MHES
known as E-Rental
International Trading
Limited)

LEBRERARAR
(A8 E-Rental
International Trading
Limited)

IrgeRBElEEREMR People’s Republic RMB5,000,000 = 100  Provision of car rental services
/A7) (Beijing Tu An Car of China (‘PRC”)/  AR¥5,000,0007T REABEEAES
Rental Services Limited)* Mainland China

HREARALNE
(THE ),/ HERD
* This entity is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * UL E 8RR E P BUERETT M SN S

enterprise under PRC law and its statutory financial
statements are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network. The English name of this entity referred
to in this note represented management’s best efforts
in translating the Chinese name of this entity as no
English name has been registered or available.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
the subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

(2011) Statements
Amendments to a number of  Annual Improvements 2012-2014
HKFRSs Cycle

2.1

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS
11, HKFRS 14, amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41, amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain
amendments included in the Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the amendments are described
below:

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation
and disclosure in financial statements. The
amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(if) that specific line items in the statement of
profit or loss and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss. The
amendments have had no significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify
the principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that
revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating a business (of
which the asset is part) rather than the economic
benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for
the calculation of depreciation of its non-current
assets.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions®
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses’

Amendments to a number of Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle®

HKFRSs

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019
2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in
August 2016 that address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of
a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments
introduce an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety
as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for application now.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectua
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is
currently assessing of the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured
at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments clarify
that an entity, when assessing whether taxable profits
will be available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax law
restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it
may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in
which taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2017.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s interest in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment
in the joint venture, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the
joint venture is included as part of the Group’s interest
in a joint venture.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash—
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its available-for-sale investments
and derivative financial instruments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(viij a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful lives:

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33"/,%
office equipment

Machinery and equipment 25%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 25%

Toolings 50%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Vehicle rental business licence and licence plates

Vehicle rental business licence and licence plates are
accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and are not amortised. They are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding three years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production or when the intangible assets are available
for use.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks incidental to ownership of assets to the Group,
other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and receivables and available-
for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification is as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and other
expenses for receivables.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity investments.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as “interest income” and
“dividend income”, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

B 3R R M
31 December 2016
—T—R"F+=-A=+—H

2.4 FESTHTHEBRE )

RERHMUMBEE B

A& g (&)
TR ELHBIRE (E)

ELTRESKREZATFETRAEL
AEER (@) EFEENRFEZ LN
ERHKRERERZN (b) RBEANNFIE
flET B9 AT B M TS RE & B2 30 AT A B R 0 fd
AR E S RFREHUKRBERDR
BIERIR °

AEEFEREHALEETHLER
BEENEINEERENAEE -
AEERDEITR T E™M S NEBMmA
EREEZSMBEE  AKERER
BRZENBEEET O R(EERERRE
AREBARARHRKEEZZNHHFA
BE) -

sLUE A ERBIE R DB KRB
BEME  EF2BEBHNLQFER
EEKRSEFEHERAN  RZEER
RN ERT RN ERKRSEHERTIE
RERANETRNRENR NFHRBEHE
B o MEHER AR S B MWE
MERE TREAERMEREENER
TFEHREE - HEERREEE SR
B SR RENREEENIEE
BER -

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 543E € @i R AR A 5

107



108

Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY AL

31 December 2016
— T RNFt+=ZA=+—H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings
(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds
exhibits characteristics of an embedded derivative,
it is separated from its liability component. On initial
recognition, the derivative component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as
the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and derivative components of the convertible
bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and derivative components when the instruments
are initially recognised. The portion of the transaction
costs relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the
derivative component is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
a joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
a joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

from the rendering services, when the
corresponding services are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received

in advance of the rendering of the relevant services.

Deferred revenue is released to profit or loss when the

corresponding services have been rendered.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group
or the employee are met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following period. An accrual
is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during
the period by the employees and carried forward.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities of the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in
the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currency of each entity of the Group, judgement is
required to determine and consider the currency that
mainly influences sales prices of goods and services
and of the country/jurisdiction whose competitive forces
and regulations mainly determines the sales prices of
goods and services; the currency that mainly influences
labour, materials and other costs of providing goods
or services; the currency in which funds from financing
activities are generated; and the currency in which
receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
The functional currency of each entity of the Group is
determined based on management’s assessment of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. When the indicators are mixed and the
functional currency is not obvious, management uses
its judgement to determine the functional currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the provision for income taxes. Determining
income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules/tax laws. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions/arrangements and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions/arrangements is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Finance lease arrangements

The Group has entered into certain arrangements
(including sale and leaseback arrangements) with a
leasing company to finance its purchases of certain
motor vehicles for its car rental business. The Group
evaluated the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and assessed that the arrangements transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the motor vehicles to the Group and so
accounts for the arrangements as finance leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a trade receivable is impaired. To determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. Where there
is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and
timing of future cash flows are estimated based on,
inter alia, historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and/or other relevant
facts and circumstances.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated
impairment of receivables arising from the inability of its
debtors to make the required payments or if the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred) is less
than the financial assets’ carrying amount. The Group
makes its estimates based on, inter alia, the ageing of
its receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history and historical write-off experience
and/or other relevant facts and circumstances. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate
so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to
revise the basis/assumptions/estimates of making the
allowance. Further details are included in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are included in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are included in notes
13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value of an available-for-sale investment

The available-for-sale equity investment has been
valued based on the expected cash flows discounted at
current rates applicable for items with similar terms and
risk characteristics. This valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about expected future cash flows,
credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty. Further details are included
in notes 17 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-
sale and recognises movements of their fair values
in equity. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Further
details are included in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged analyses
of the Group’s inventories, projections of expected
future saleability of goods, changes in technological,
market, economic and business conditions and
management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below
their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in
technological, market and economic environment and
customers’ preference, actual saleability of goods may
be different from estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
economic useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment. Management estimates the useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment to be two to five
years or over the shorter of the lease terms and four
years for leasehold improvements. Changes in the
expected level of usage, technological developments
and/or the period over which future economic benefits
are generated could impact the economic useful lives of
the assets and, therefore, future depreciation charges
could be revised.

B 3R R M
31 December 2016
—T-A"FTZA=t+—H

E RS E R A o
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BB R R MY AL

31 December 2016

4,

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Car rental segment — primarily engages in the
provision of car rental services;

(b) Materials trading segment — primarily engages in
the trading of materials; and

(c) Financing services segment — primarily engages
in money lending business through the provision
of loans.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
other income and gains, unallocated depreciation,
unallocated finance costs as well as corporate and
other unallocated expenses and share of loss of a joint
venture are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable, cash and
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis, as well as interest in a joint venture.

Segment liabilities exclude an interest-bearing other
borrowing, derivative financial instruments, convertible
bonds, certain tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R AR P

31 December 2016
—ET-AFt+=-A=+—~8

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. #
INFORMATION (continued)

EoEER @)

HAl

Car rental Materials trading Financing services Total
HEfg WRER SRR it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-NE ZE-RE ZB-NE ZE-RE ZE-NE ZE-RE ZE-AE CE-Rf
HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS
AT AT AT AT A AT A BT
(Restated)
({55
Segment revenue; s
Sales of goods HESm - — 3.213,631,497 240,375,762 - — 3.213,631,497 240,375,762
Car rental income RERERA 24,844076 24,612,069 - - - - 24844076 24,612,269
Loan inferest income ERHEMA - - - - BN 6202505 8430435 6230505
Revenue from continuing e A
operations 24844076 24,612,269 3,213,631,497 240375762 8430435 6,232,505 3,246,906,008 271,220,536
Segment results Pk (81,141,458) 15641843 118,294,118 10715208 6925491 6,200,606 44,078,151 32,586,777
Reconciiation: HE:
Unallocated interest income RARHEHA 90,661 41128
Unallocated other income and gaing RAREMAR G 1,896,169 7941570
Unallocated depreciation FOLNE (4,745,138) (1,700,648
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREBR SRR (26,952,392) (27,653,897
Unalocated fiance costs FARRENA (31,663,028 (14.439)
Share of loss of a joint venture EE-Fo807ER (3,123,148 (7854,777)
Profit/oss) before tax from continuing operations KBRS R
#Hl/(B8) (19.368,718) 3345715
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. ReETHEFR

INFORMATION (continued)

Car rental Materials trading Financing services Total

FEfE HHES SRAE ]

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

JE-NE CE-RF CE-XE CE-RF ZE-RE CE-RF ZE-RE 233
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
o £ B BT B £ B iy
Restated)
(5 Ej
Segment assets 9EE 85,328,743 541,791,110 1,102,990,274 240,101,783 112,000,000 111,835,710 1,300,319,017 893,728,603
Reconciiaton: 85
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMAALEE 54,831,870 122,189,961
Asses related to a discontinued operation BERALTEZRNER - 18349601
Total asset RERE 1,365,160,887 1,034,268,165
Segment liabilities 988 47,480,620 44,042,438 - 10909 170,000 — 47650620 44,953,347
Reconcilation: 85
Corporate and other unallocated liabiltes PERENMAALER 401,359437 24,323,330
Liabiltes related to a discontinued operation REBALTEZRNER - 34124408
Totalliabiities aEGE 449,010,057 103.401,085
Other segment information; EftAgEn
Finance casts BERS 2014529 1,871,889 - = - - 2014529 1871889
Write-0ff of materials fiEH - - - 1066% - - - 1066
Depreciation ii& 0,825,135 9,972,607 - = - - 082513 9972697
Impaiment of goodwil EENE 24,263,284 - - - - - 4,263,084 =
Impaitment of property, plant and equipment 0% BERRERE 6,426,135 - - - - - 6,426,135 -
Impairment of intangible assets BEERE 13,007,128 - - - - - 13,907,128 =
Impairment of an avallable-for-sale investment —“FAEHERERE 38,918,740 = - = - - 38918740 =
Capital expenditure’ EARY 5,855,173 20,254,806 - = - - 5855173 20,254,806
2 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BEARLBEAEME  BE KR
plant and equipment. & -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—E—R"FT-HA=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT 4. ReETHEFR
INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information ih & & K

Tiiﬂ&mﬁﬂ BT —RNEFER
T—RE+-_A=+—RAILEEKRA
ﬁ%@%%ﬁ%%%ﬁm%*'u&%

The following tables present revenue from external
customers of continuing operations for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015, and certain non-current

assets information of continuing operations as at 31

December 2016 and 2015, by geographical areas.

—E-REk= £¢+ A= +_
Elﬁ?a%&%%ﬁ%z S TERBEENE
Ko

United Other
European States of Mainland Asia

Union America China  Hong Kong region* Total

BH%E ZH2ERE HERS 78 HHTMHE* it

HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$

BT A B BT B B

(Restated)

(& E30)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ-E-XEtZB=1-R

LEE

Revenue from external customers RENEE 2 hE 554134256 4202490 2,280023955 4,227,045 404,317,362  3,246,006,008

Year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ-2-1Et-A=+-A
LEE

Revenue from external customers RENBEP <Y - 1,165,710 269,878,969 175,857 - 271200536
As at 31 December 2016 R=B-~E+ZA=1-8

Non-current assets FhBEE - - 183,766,134 14,102,106 - 197,868,240
Non-current assets FRBEE(FRELRIR)

(excluding financial instruments) - - 69,821,359 9,242,106 - 79,063,465
As at 31 December 2015 R-R-EF+=A=1-H

Non-current assets FREEE - - 171,253,808 14,732,893 - 185,986,696
Non-current assets (excluding financial FhBAE(TREeRIE)

instruments) - - 129,761,773 13,162,466 - 142914239
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

— =

4.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The Group’s revenue information of continuing
operations by geographical areas is based on the
destination to where the goods are delivered, except
for revenue arising from the rendering of services,
which is based on the locations where the customers
are domiciled/located. The Group’s non-current asset
information of continuing operations by geographical
areas is based on the locations of the assets.

*

Other Asia region includes Malaysia and Singapore, etc.

Information about major customers

Revenues of HK$2,428.5 million (2015: HK$184.7
million) and HK$382.9 million (2015: HK$55.4 million)
were derived from sales to two customers of the
materials trading segment, which individually amounted
to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s total revenue for
the current and prior years.

Annual Report 2016 =& — N E £ 3R
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HEE R (5)

AEBRWERE D NFELEEB KRR
BERTIREREE RO MET - H
REBRBELENRRZREF B, L
BRHEMETE - AEBEIRMES DA
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BEMRBEMEE °

© EDMGEeRESREDREME
BAREEZEFNEN

W25 2,428,500,000 L (ZE— A F -
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.

GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts;
the value of car rental and other services rendered; and
loan interest earned from financing services rendered

during the year.

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

s

=

=3

31 December 2016
NE+=ZA =+ H

Hib W A K Wz 378

WHEFATNREREREZTHERND
EERNBRFE  RETERERA
RISV EE - AR RRFBATERIZ
ERAE -

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net BELEEB 2 WE - Bl A Rk
from continuing operations is as follows: FREDTAT -
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —T—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(ge=E=75)
Revenue &
Sales of goods HEE M 3,213,631,497 240,375,762
Car rental income RERAEWA 24,844,076 24,612,269
Loan interest income B EHA 8,430,435 6,232,505
3,246,906,008 271,220,536
Other income Hp g A
Bank interest income RITFEHA 90,661 41,128
Other interest income H A 2 WA - 1,306,098
Income in relation to certain procurement/ G/E THE 28 KR EL
credit/investment arrangements Bz A 2,361,269 25,176,977
Others HAth 306,187 115,378
2,758,117 26,639,581
Gains, net g9
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BMERLZFEEE D
plant and equipment, net Wiz 58 1,551,945 =
Gain on disposal of an equity investment & —IEiR A FET AEBEN
at fair value through profit or loss AR 1R & my Wi as 63,931 —
Fair value gain on derivative financial ARRESFNITEERIAR
instruments in relation to convertible AWz
bonds 1,847,000 —
3,462,876 —
6,220,993 26,639,581
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

6. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations

is as follows:

BE KA

SEREEBRERADMAT :

2016 2015

—E—-XE —E—RF

HK$ HK$

BT Vv

(Restated)

(& E5)

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERFE 14,010,419 1,871,889
Interest on convertible bonds ARRESFE 19,632,549 —
Bank charges RITFEE 34,587 14,438
33,677,555 1,886,327
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016

—E—RE+-A=H H
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIAIEF(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing REBMBECEER ZBRBANEFN, (&
operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BIEMR,(GEA)ATEE :
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
P& BT B TT
(Restated)
(&&EZ)
Cost of inventories sold and HEFE RIRMHARE KA
services rendered 3,114,871,260 247,819,646
Depreciation” wE" 11,540,270 11,673,345
Minimum lease payments under &&MEH [ v HEHREMK"
operating leases” 12,175,946 11,092,339
Auditor’s remuneration = AN & 1,820,000 1,608,000
Employee benefit expense EERANAZ(BEESHH
(including directors’ (PffzE8))
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages, salaries, allowances, IT& &% 2R EAkE
bonuses and benefits in kind Y 2= 15,221,667 15,211,198
Pension scheme contributions  R{R& 513 (FE BB
(defined contribution g)*
schemes)™ 842,812 764,689
16,064,479 15,975,887
Foreign exchange differences, [EH =% %58
net 240,021 1,060,757
Fair value gain on derivative ARBEESNITESHIAER
financial instruments in relation “F{EU S
to convertible bonds (1,847,000) —
Impairment of goodwill* EESEREN 14 24,263,284 -
Impairment of property, ME - BEREERE"
plant and equipment* 13 6,426,135 —
Impairment of intangible assets* &2 & &R (E * 15 13,907,128 —
Impairment of an available-for- —IE ] {ft 1 &% & B (E *
sale investment* 17 38,918,740 —
Write-off of inventories/ WEEFE
materials* ML 15,861 106,625
Gain on disposal of an equity & —BIZAFE ABZRERN
investment at fair value AR 1R B B Wi e
through profit or loss (63,931) =
Loss/(gain) on disposal HEME  BEREKEEE®
of items of property, plant B8, (M) FRE -
and equipment, net* (1,551,945) 53,981
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E—RF+ A=A H

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 7.

A

The depreciation in respect of certain of the Group’s

motor vehicles of HK$9,583,937 (2015: HK$8,647,951)
and the minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of certain of the Group’s motor
vehicles of HK$6,918,491 (2015: HK$5,920,428)

are included in “Cost of sales”
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

of the face of the

* The impairment of property, plant and equipment,
goodwill, intangible assets and an available-for-sale
investment, the write-off of inventories/materials and
the net loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment were included in “Other expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*"* At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no
material forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to its pension schemes in future years.

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

BRBLATRER(B5E) @)

A

##

AEBHTRE 2T E 9,583,937 7
T(ZZE—HF 8,647,951 8 L) &
EHAASEEETREZLEMAEET
&K E 186,918,491 B (=&
—H 4 1 5,920,428 7T ) B it AGRA
BaERZ[HEKRAN]—IE -

ME - BERRERE BERE-
BEERE  —HARLERER
B WHEFE/ MHEEEWE &
FERZREBENEBERFECIALE
BaERPH [ EMASIFR] - -

RZE—RFER-_ZT—HF+=A
=+—H AEBWELIWEKRNERK
Th ] AR B R B 12 F E E R KA EIE
AR -

EERITHAR MW

BAE E R B R & B QA a E 65 383(1)

(@)~

() ) RHERAR(HKEEEF

BHER)RPIE2MRBENEE RITHRE

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of HERNEMHOT :
Information about Benefit of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE¥ —E—AF
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Fees Hwe 5,013,572 5,640,000
Other emoluments: Hi e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERREYEA
in kind 602,174 —
Pension scheme contributions BARFT IR
(defined contribution scheme) (EBHREED 7,500 =
609,674 —
5,623,246 5,640,000
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Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid or payable to independent non-

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E-REtTZA=t+—H

8. EERTHARTM =

(a) BAFHITES

FRAENKENBIIFATES

executive directors during the year were as eSS :
follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Mr. Fang Jun HEgE 120,000 120,000
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest EREEE A 120,000 120,000
Mr. Zhao Xianming B A 120,000 120,000
360,000 360,000

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2015: Nil).

FA WEEMBENELIERNT
EENFM(—ZT—1F: 8E) -

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 343 & @i AR AR A 5
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive

ESERTHEETM

(b) BITES  #HTEER
TR

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fee Fees in kind contributions remuneration
§é 28R &
ik ENER HE L5 A0 b
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT B
2016 “E-RE
Executive directors: Hi1ES:
Ms. Deng Shufen WRAat 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Mr. Dai Yumin HEGAE(RZE—F
(retired on 3 June 2016) ANAZBEM) 514,286 - - 514,286
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan ATELT 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Mr. Gui Bin (retired on 3 June 2016) ~ BEEL(R-T—14E
NAZAEF) 514,286 - - 514,286
Ms. Wu Qiong REAT(RZT-7ERA
(appointed on 3 June 2016) ZREZH) 700,000 - - 700,000
4,128,572 - - 4,128,572
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Ho Kin Cheong, Kelvin IRERE(N-T-—A%F
(appointed on 11 April 2016) NA+-REZf) 525,000 - - 525,000
Chief Executives: fTlifas; :
Ms. Wu Qiong (appointed on RRAT(RZE—RF
on 18 April 2016 and MA+\REZHE
redesignated as Vice-Chairman ¥R =E—7E\A+55R
on 16 August 2016) REREIER) - 150,000 - 150,000
Ms. Chen Xiaohang RERIT(R=Z-7~ENA
(appointed on 16 August 2016) /< REZE) - 452,174 7,500 459,674
4,653,572 602,174 7,500 5,263,246
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B 755 R AR P

31 December 2016

T "Ft+=ZA=+—H
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERITHEZFM =
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HITES kHFTESER
director and the chief executive THER(E)
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
§¢& 2HR B
ik ENER HERE ez
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT B
2015 ZE-1E
Executive directors: HiTES:
Ms. Deng Shufen Whiat 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Mr. Dai Yumin Lk bk 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Mr. Gui Bin ERLE 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan YTRIL 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
4,800,000 - - 4,800,000
Non-executive director: #HTEE
Mr. Wang Yongbin (retired on TAWAE(R-Z-0F
26 June 2015) AAZTABER) 480,000 - - 480,000
5,280,000 - - 5,280,000

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 5A3Z & @R R B R A = 143



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IEBREHFNES

The five highest paid employees during the year R ALBRSHEHNEERERLES
o (S3—mF mEHE) £508M
W u | ut | Ve. | N S o N —

: . HBEHR EXMEs FA H#f=4
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three e L = 1
(2015: one) highest paid employees who are neither —FRF CR)FARAEEAAT

a director nor chief executive of the Company are as BB &R EENFMFBAT -
follows:
Group
£8
2016 2015
—E—-RE T —FhF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e o REE AR
benefits in kind BEWEA 3,497,000 1,300,000
Pension scheme contributions (defined BRIRFHEIE R (ERE
contribution scheme) HRETE)) 54,000 18,000
3,551,000 1,318,000
The number of non-director highest paid employees FMN TR EENFEERRFTIESR
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as BIASLAT
follows:

Number of employees

EEAZ
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7T%E 1,500,000 7T 3 1
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10.

Notes to Financial Statements

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

BRI et
31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

10. FRB8®

EANNEHRIIBREBEE ZBETER
B iR16.5% (ZE—FHE : 16.5%)

7458 L4 2 T 4 ) 70 7 0 B 0
SHEBIE -

operates.

2016 2015
—E—RE¥ —E—AF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(#EES)

Current — Hong Kong BNHR — &

Charge for the year AEEZH 15,622,424 3,281,869
Current — Elsewhere BVHl — Hihib[E 56,509 5,304
Deferred (note 29) IRIE (FsE29) (3,662,979) (425,073)
Total tax charge for the year NI b 12,015,954 2,862,100
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
— T RNFt+=ZA=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations at
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a

10. Fr8%Hi @)

ERRBRARRRERED M EREM
EREEHNRAERMAEMR R ER
BEEEBOBRBANER,/(BE) OB
HRS, (%) BRERBRGTE 2B
TR H AR - NoE A B R (BDAE

reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e. the statutory

tax rate) to the effective rate, are as follows:

) HERBEOHERSIMT ;

2016 2015
—E-ARE —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT P TT
(Restated)
(#E5))
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing FECEEBORBIANEF,
operations (E518) (19,388,718) 3,345,715
Hong Kong statutory tax rate BEBEEHE 16.5% 16.5%
Tax expense/(credit) at the Hong Kong I EBEEMRAENTIE
statutory tax rate M (EH) (3,199,138) 552,043
Effect of difference in tax rate/tax rule FFE Al ARE R S B B TS A
for specific jurisdiction or enacted BEITRMNRER, /TR
by local tax authority RS2 (3,789,889) (139,207)
Loss attributable to a joint venture —REELQRELEE 515,319 1,296,038
Income not subject to tax BARR U A (318,667) (1,217)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 18,909,073 1,679,142
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & Fl#87F Hif 2 B fs &8 - (148,355)
Others HAt, ( 100,744) ( 376,344)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective BASENERBEAENT
tax rate X 12,015,954 2,862,100
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Notes to Financial Statements

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 22 August 2016, the Company and an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser
agreed to purchase and the Company agreed to sell
the entire issued share capital of Perception Digital
Technology (BVI) Limited and its subsidiary, PD Trading
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Disposed Subsidiaries”) for a
consideration of HK$1. The Disposed Subsidiaries
carried out all of the Group’s consumer electronic
devices/platforms and related solutions/services. The
disposal was completed on 22 August 2016. The Group
ceased to operate the consumer electronic devices/
platforms and related solutions/services segment
thereafter and the segment is no longer included in
the note for operating segment information. The gain
on disposal of this discontinued operation amounted
to HK$15,603,267. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the gain on disposal of the discontinued operation
of HK$2,982,161 represented certain subsidiaries which
also carried out the same business as the Disposed
Subsidiaries.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

.BRIEREEK

RZEBE-—RFENAZ+ZH &R
—%ﬁ*”*HGEEDJiaaﬁ
F OB BFREBEMARAMR
& 1 & Perception Digital Technology
(BVI) Limited R H[fBAF PD Trading
(Hong Kong) Limited ([ & 1 Z [ B 2
AhzaHesTREA RER1B
T BHZMBARIAREERKEMA
HEBBTHEM / TaRMEEABRAFER
/%%°ﬁ%$%%_$*A¢AH
ZtTZHEX - HRAEED &
HES® %%M/$A&ﬁ%%&3x/
R HE - Bk D BIEIALED
BERMT - HEREDRIEREEB L
W% 15,603,267 BT c HE_T—H
FH+_A=T—HILFE HEBKRIL
IR 2 2,982,161 AT fg# 1T
S H 2 KB A RIMER 8 R 2 5 T
SN
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

11.

el
=

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(continued)

The results of the Disposed Subsidiaries and
subsidiaries disposed in 2015 are presented below:

11.

ORIEREEK @)

ELZHBRARANRE-_S—AFLE
P - PNSEOES VI PURNE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue & 555,852 4,088,183
Cost of services provided Fr e 4 AR 765 A AR (442,930) (3,648,637)
Gross profit ES 112,922 439,546
Other income HAip g A 23 221,429
Research and development costs it 75 & A B A AN - (1,507,783)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DX (1,667) (3,312,082)
General and administrative expenses —RRITHER (936,077) (6,102,209)
Other expenses, net Hi S 558 (3,661) (768,535)
Finance costs A& AR - (14,208)
Loss before tax B 56 A & 18 (828,460)  (11,043,842)
Income tax expenses FriS it - (269)
Loss for the year from the discontinued B&RIFKEEEB 2 FERNER
operation (828,460) (11,044,111)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HEBRIEEEER 2 W
operation 15,603,267 2,982,161
14,774,807 (8,061,950)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—T-RFt+=-A=+—8H
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 1. EREREEK @
(continued)
The net cash flows incurred by the Disposed HEH > HBATRMBATR -
Subsidiaries and subsidiaries disposed in 2015 are as —FEEAYELAERENT
follows:

2016 2015

—E-KEF —T—hF

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Operating activities KETTE) (65,508) 6,346,495
Investing activities BEEH (300,331) (6,948,350)
Financing activities BEGH — (14,208)
Net cash outflow REMLFEE (365,839) (616,063)

Earnings/(loss) per share:

Basic, from the discontinued operation
Diluted, from the discontinued operation

BRAERN,(BE)
AR KRB E%H«e.-f%ﬁ% HKO0.23 centi#{ll HK(0.15) cent &l
BE - REDRIEKEEET HK0.22 centi#{l  HK(0.15) cent B {ll*

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per KREERIHEEEBKNSRERLEE
share from the discontinued operation are based on: B (BE)NtE iR -
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—AF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent from the
discontinued operation

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used
in the basic earnings/(loss) per share
calculation (note 12)

Weighted average number of ordinary

B AR E BRI ER A ARG

KB BRI S TG m A

/(E18) 14,774,807 (8,061,950)
AESREARFR

(BE)NFADRETEBR

By hniE I B (B 12)

6,483,845,685 5,550,858,225

TEEREERT(EBE)W

shares used in the diluted earnings 3B IR B DN AE 35 &R
/(loss) per share calculation 6,633,832,931 5,550,858,225*
*  No adjustment had been made to the basic loss per share * MENEERARHE_ZT—HF T+ A

amount from the discontinued operation for the year ended
31 December 2015 in respect of a dilution as the impact

=T HIEFERBEREEEEB LT
BREABBERE - WIIARBITEINZE

of the potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding had EEEEERYEMENNzEE—_T—RAF

an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount

ToA=+—RLEFEEREAEREHE

presented for the year ended 31 December 2015. BEREETE -

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 343 & @i AR AR A 5
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12.
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

BRAREERRESEARE
HERER(BHE)

FRERRBEERT (BR)METD

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)

150

per share are based on: R -
2016 2015
—E—-XE —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT Vv
(Restated)
(&L E5)
Earnings/(loss) 2R (&E)
Earnings/(loss) attributable to ordinary AESREAREF,(EE)
equity holders of the parent used in B A A B A B i AR A
the basic earnings/(loss) per share EA ANEGEF,
calculation: (E518) -
From continuing operations REFEEE L (31,404,672) 483,615
From a discontinued operation RE KIS 14,774,807 (8,061,950)
(16,629,865)  (7,578,335)
Number of shares
R EE
2016 2015
—B-XRE —T-hEF
Shares vy
Weighted average number of ordinary shares stESRERRBF,/(FE)E
in issue during the year used in the basic RANFARETLT AR
earnings/(loss) per share calculation INREF & 6,483,845,685 5,550,858,225

Effect of dilution — weighted average number #4582 — @R NE

of ordinary shares: T
Warrants R FE
Share Options AR iE

101,863,626
76,332,912

6,483,845,685

5,729,054,763
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12.

Notes to Financial Statements

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(continued)

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of HK$16,629,865 (2015:
HK$7,578,335) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 6,483,845,685 (2015: 5,550,858,225)
The basic loss per share
amount for the year ended 31 December 2015 has

in issue during the year.

been adjusted to reflect the bonus element in the
placing of shares of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the year ended 31
December 2016 in respect of a dilution as the impact of
the potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basis loss per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2016.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amount presented for the year ended 31
December 2015 in respect of a dilution as the impact of
the potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the year ended 31 December 2015 was based on
the profit from continuing operations attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation was the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings/(loss) per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

BLARIEERKREREEAE
HERER,(EBE) @

EREAEESEDRES QAR EER
B+ A A FE (G F N & 18 16,629,865
» (=  — A F:7,578,335/%
TI)RFRBETEBRGMEFH
#6,483,845,685% (= T — 7 F:
5,550,858,225 R )5t E - HHE=-F—H
F+_A=+—BHLEFENERERE
BB FAE  URBREBEE_-Z
—hAF+-A=+—HBLEFEREARAR
AR 2 AR T Z ©

BERESARBE_T—RF+-A
St BLEFEMRIZEBERERE
Bt DERNBITEICAEESESE
RELTAREBE_T-XF+_A
ST HLEFEEBIERELEES
BARMERE -

BMELBIABRHEE_T-—RAF+_H
:+—E¢¢F%£W2lkﬁ$%ﬁ
TH - MITHARBTEINZAHEETTE
BRI cBE_FT—AF+=
A=+ -BULFESREABEREHEA
REBTE

BE_ZT-AF+-_A=1+—HLFE
BREBRNIREG AR EBRKE
FBEABIERBEREXE OBNFE
AEMAZEBRINEFORAARFE
BEEITE @k%ﬁ'&%ﬁﬁm CR=E
BEARF,(EBER) BB
ﬁﬁﬁ?“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%&
BET AR BRAT BRMEERET -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

13. ¥% - BERRHE

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold
equipment  improvements Toolings ~ Motor vehicles Total
il %ER
BOERAE RERE I8 HE 48
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A A A A
31 December 2016 ZE-RETZR=t-R
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016: NE-RE+-A=1-A
R2%-7E-R-R:
Cost i 3,304,153 3,218,529 1,501,389 39,884,508 47,098,579
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ZENERIE (1,020,316) (1,700,229) (1,491,100) (5.907,775)  (10,128420)
Net carrying amount EmAE 2,364,837 1,518,300 10,289 33,076,733 37,810,159
At 1 January 2016, net of accumulated depreciationand  =E-~F-A-8-
impeiment TRERNERAA 2,364,837 1,518,300 10,289 33,076,733 37,870,159
Adaftions HE 126,375 - - 5,852,182 5,978,557
Disposals il (25,561) - - (576,113) (601,674)
Disposal of subsictaries (note 33(1) HEHBAT (R3E33(0) - - (4,409) - (4,409)
Depreciation provided during the year TEEAERE (805,202) (1,135,951) (5,880 (9,599,027) (11,546,150)
Impaiment during the year AEERE - - - (6,426,135) (6,426,135)
Exchange realignment ERAE (39,307) - - (1,364,246) (1,403,553)
At 31 December 2016, net of accumulated depreciation  M=F-7ET-A=1-8"
and impairment NREEFERER 1,621,052 382,349 - 21,863,304 23,866,795
At 31 December 2016: RZE-7ETZA=1-R:
Cost A 3,416,267 3,218,529 - 38,219,640 44,854,436
Accumulated depreciation and mpaiment ZEAERIAE (1,795,215) (2,836,180) - (16,356,46)  (20,987,641)
Net carrying amount e 1,621,052 382,349 - 21,863,394 23,866,795
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R AR P

31 December 2016

—ZT—R"E+=ZA=+—H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13. W% - BERRE@®
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Furniture,
fixtures Machinery
and office and Leasehold Motor
equipment  improvements Toolings vehicles Tota
e HERE 1% i e
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT AT AT AT AT BT
(Restated| (Restated)
31 December 2015 Z3-1FtAZ-H
At 1 January 2015; NZE-1%-A-A:
Cost 11 14,049,332 2,061,291 5,116,024 1,483,749 28,629,942 51,940,338
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment R FEREE (9,603,980) (2,002,566) (2,752,399) (1,464,625) (457,77 (16,261,308)
Net carrying amount FERE 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 28,172,170 35,669,030
At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated N-5-1%-A-A"
depreciation and impairment NB2EAERRE 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 28,172,170 35,699,030
Additions nE 30,498 - - 17,640 20,254,806 20,302,904
Wiite-of i - - (228,764) - - (28,764)
Disposels te Wi - - - DBy 81
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(b) HERBAT(HiEa) (429.904) (33.804) = = (116,089) (579,799)
Depreciation provided during the year TEERERE (1,122,415) [24,921) (1,211,900 (26,475) 0751362 (12,137,079
Exchange realignment B2 (80,910) - (4,665) - (2,224,448 (2,310,028
At 31 December 2015, net of acoumulated ~ R-F-RE+ZA=1-8-
depreciation and impairment NRZERERGE 2,364,837 - 1518300 10,269 33,976,733 37,870,159
At 31 December 2015; NE-REt-A=t-A:
Cost e 3,394,193 - 3,218,529 1,501,389 39,884,508 47,998,579
Acoumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZEFEREE (1,029,316) - (1,700,229) (1,491,100 (6,907,775) (10,128,420)
Net carrying amount FA3E 2,364,837 - 1,518,300 10,289 33,976,733 37,870,159
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—

13.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s other
borrowings were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
motor vehicles of approximately HK$8,112,260 (2015:
HK$21,437,345).

Certain of the Group’s motor vehicles are identified as
part of the car-rental cash-generating unit. During the
year, impairment of HK$6,426,135 (2015: Nil) were
made on the property, plant and equipment since the
recoverable amount of the car rental cash-generating
unit is lower than its carrying amount. Details of the
impairment testing are included in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016 =& — N E £ 3R

13.

M~ BB R&R

N—E—-XNE+-_A=+—HB" K
EEETHEMEBEERAEERB 2 AE
#8,112,260/% o(= T — A F:
21,437,345 %70 ) 2 IR EHE A -

EFAEBZAEN#HABY AEM
ERSELEN - RAFE  BRIAE
HERSEAEMHATKESERNE
IREE W% BREREZEEIELR
156,426,135 T (T —H&F : &) -
ERARENANFBINGEMBHRE
MoeE14 o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016

GOODWILL 14. B2
HK$
BT
Cost at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 RZZE—RE—H—8
and 1 January 2016 —E—hF+=A=+—H
RZZT—RE—-—R—BZHXK 26,210,338
Impairment during the year REERE (24,263,284)
Exchange realignment b H, 58 B (1,947,054)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF+-A=+—HBzZEKEF
& -
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RE+-_A=+—H
Cost P A 24,263,284
Accumulated impairment Z25TRVE (24,263,284)
Net carrying amount REFE —
Impairment testing of goodwill and BERELEENRERF
intangible assets
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired through a BREBEHBENHERETLEED
business combination are allocated to the car rental WHOREREHERSELBMNIERE
cash-generating unit for impairment testing. Al e
The recoverable amount of the car rental cash— AEHERESELENLAIEKESEIR
generating unit has been determined based on a value BEREAEFERARSREEB(A
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on ﬁfﬁﬁt/gﬁ"jﬁigﬁfﬁ\ﬁfﬁﬁﬁg%ﬁ
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved e B METE - EHASEARSE
d 9 il PP CSEVBBAFAMRSAREREA
by management. The growth rate used to extrapolate 3% (ZE—FAF :3%) MBRELTRETE
the cash flows of the car rental cash-generating unit BIEFERAMEIRE B16% (ZE — A F -
beyond the five-year period is 3% (2015: 3%) and the 16%) °

discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is

16% (2015: 16%).

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 543Z £ Bi3% IR G IR A &
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BB R R MY AL

31 December 2016

— =

14.

Annual Report 2016 ==

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

GOODW| LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and
intangible assets (continued)

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease
in the growth rate by 0.5% and an increase in the
discount rate by 0.5% would cause the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit to further exceed
its recoverable amount by approximately HK$1,223,000
and HK$3,861,000, respectively.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the above cash-generating unit for 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements

and expected business and market developments.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the recoverable
amount of the car rental cash-generating unit
determined using the above basis is HK$66,678,000
which is lower than its carrying value. Accordingly,
impairment losses of HK$24,263,284 (2015:Nil),
HK13,907,128 (2015: Nil) and HK$6,426,135 (2015:
Nil) on goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment, were recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the year.

—REEFR

14.

il

]
BEK

I

& ERRER R (5)

AAREERE  EBRERD05% K
BhIR EIEIN05% KEBIR e ELEE M
Z AR E 5 Rl — R m H Al Y Bl & 58
#31,223,000% 7T X 3,861,000 %It °

RZE-—RE+_A=+—RAK=
—ﬂi—?—fﬂ:ﬂ——lﬂﬂ’ﬂiufﬁﬁéi
ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂ'gqjﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁi

o NXEMEREE A ERERE M
ﬂf;jjmiﬁi/mgiﬁ\ BIFTKIER S TEEE
B

BEEA — EERRAEBRARANE
ERNERBEFHFEMERNTY
WA ~ 125 B0 P TR HR 0 0 R A e TR
MEBRMSER

BRI — FTAMBIIRRAKRBI LR
X WARMBENREWRSELEMND
HER R o

HE-_ZT—X"F+ZA=+—HLEHF
E -HRALAEEET 2 AEHERS
Ei%@ﬂ’ﬁﬂl&@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%,s?s,ooo%
T BRREREE Al B &K
ﬁ?&%% WERRENREEES
71124,263,284 BT (ZE—A%F : &)
13,907,128 B L (ZZE—HF : B) K
6,426,135 B T(ZFT—HF : M)ER
NEFEHEBRRPER °
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16.

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—E-REtTZA=t+—H
INTANGIBLE ASSETS BILEE
Vehicle rental
License business
plates license Total
B
B KRR B
HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT
Cost at 1 January 2015, 31 December R-Z-—RF—H—AH"
2015 and 1 January 2016 —“T-RF+-R
t-BRZF-1%F
—B—BZRAK 16,380,000 52,290,000 68,670,000
Impairment during the year AERRE (3,317,297 (10,589,831) (13,907,128)
Exchange realignment [E 5 3% (1,776,393) (5,670,793) (7,447,186)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2016 R=ZE—<FE+=-A
=t+—HZEmFE 11,286,310 36,029,376 47,315,686
At 31 December 2016 R F
+-A=+-H
Cost B 14,603,607 46,619,207 61,222,814
Accumulated impairment 2FRE (3,317,297) (10,589,831) (13,907,128)
Net carrying amount REFE 11,286,310 36,029,376 47,315,686

The license plates and vehicle rental business license
with indefinite useful lives acquired through a business
combination are allocated to the car rental cash-
generating unit. Details of the impairment testing are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

BEREBAFREZEBFEENEREH
ZEENAEHAREHERIOEEN
EHERSELEM - BHEBENAZ
HIFHN P RER T4 -

16. R—XEE QAN ER

Group
£H

2016 2015

—E-XRE —E—0F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Share of net liabilities EiRaEFE (3,132,389) (9,243)
Amount due from a joint venture JE—RE & A RIFIA 11,013,373 10,172,985

7,880,984 10,163,742

The amount due from a joint venture included in the
Group’s non-current assets is unsecured, interest-
free and is not expected to be repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

FARREGERBEEZRE—REE
REFAREER - THERBEHEBE
RBERES T —EAREE -

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 3A3Z £ RiZ R AR A 7
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

16.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

16.

R—RE

2

T

YN

Al

i

)

KEBZzAEE AR ZERAT ¢

Particulars
of issued Place of Percentage of

shares held registration and  Ownership voting Profit
Name BEZBRT business interest power sharing Principal activities
£ Rt EfREERE EREEE  REELE FEfRa A TEEH
Zither Clubhouse Limited"* Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 50 Operations of a
HEEMERAR Lak i clubhouse
and a restaurant
eHMREELE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

TRERTAZEMERARZHUBEM

information in respect of Zither Clubhouse Limited: e
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEY 5,047,483 4,219,138
Other current assets HEREEE 1,937,956 2,468,653
Current assets MENBE 6,985,439 6,687,791
Non-current assets EREEE 12,848,063 17,166,408
Current liabilities mEN A& (24,771,271)  (22,663,349)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (1,327,008) (1,209,336)
Net liabilities BEHE (6,264,777) (18,486)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in  BEREBRESZEATIH 2
the joint venture: T AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEFLERNE ML 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the investment & ZREE (3,132,389) (9,243)
Revenue Wz 29,765,676 17,366,862
Depreciation e 4,378,792 4,010,129
Loss and total comprehensive loss for FRNEBREEABERAR
the year (6,246,291) (15,709,554)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—E—RFt+-H=+1 H
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 17. JHEERE
INVESTMENTS

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value JE ETH#EZRE @ A FE 112,000,000 39,987,400

During the year, the gross fair value loss in respect of
the Group’s available-for-sale investment recognised
in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$39,987,400 (2015: gain of HK$1,187,400).

As at 31 December 2015, the unlisted equity
investment represented 10% equity interest in Prime
Elite Ventures Limited. During the year, there was a
significant decline in the fair value of this unlisted equity
investment. The directors of the Company considered
that such a decline indicated that this unlisted equity
investment has been impaired and an impairment loss
of HK$38,918,740 (2015: Nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

AREFBEFAC R HEH M2 R AERA]
HHERE BN T(EETE39,987,40078
TT(ZZF—FRF : J]z51,187,40087T) °

R-EBE—RFE+_A=+—H" Lt
R E REEREIIRAR AR Z 10% K&
TR ZIFELTRERENATE
REBTEK - ARAREERA - KigKRHA
ZIELTREREDERE - MREES
15388,918, 7408 L(ZE—h%F : )
RBE-ZT—A"F+A=+—HIF
BZRABRRTPER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

19.

—E-—RFt+ZA=+—H
18. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS  18. EER R A
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—T0F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated B—HA— B
amortisation and impairment Mk 2FE#H RRE - 2,498,264
Amortisation provided during the year ZINCEYESR: s - (1,098,296)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A - (1,391,626)
Exchange realignment M 5, 58 B - (8,342)
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—8 - —
At 31 December: R+=ZA=+—8:
Cost AKX - _
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEIE R
impairment VERED - =
Net carrying amount REFE - =
INVENTORIES 19. 78
2016 2015
—E-KF —T—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials and components R} B 2B - 1,945
Finished goods BB oA 5,193,443 1,291,170
5,193,443 1,293,115
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

TRADE RECEIVABLES 0. FEWERRX
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$ HK$
& T B IT
Trade receivables JE W BR 5k 1,099,418,264 274,834,380
Impairment pERIES - (24,672,546)

1,099,418,264 250,161,834

Major debtors of the Group as at 31 December
2016 mainly represented trade receivables due from
independent third parties in connection with materials
trading. The Group’s trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit except for car rental customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally 90 to 160 days, or could be
longer under certain circumstances. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management.

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, except
for an individual balance of HK$3,625,541 as at 31
December 2015, which bore interest at 1.6% per
month.

Save as disclosed below, the Group generally does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances.

AEERZZE—X"F+-_A=+—88
TEEHRABBRBBILIE=FOMEE
SZERER - AEEHRTF X EIRE
EARFLESKRE RAEHER
FABEEABMRE - FEH-—KN
T 0 KR160 KFIMETHERNEERE
B HA o AN B B B B i 2R R AR
HeRNalERERAE S EHESH
B #E A o

BRR-_B—FRE+_A=+—H—%#
Bl 4564 3,625,541 B TLIEE A 1.6% 18
h - FEWERZRARE -

BRRTXHEEI  AEE—RILEH
HEKERESRTBEAERmEMD
EREY -
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Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY AL

31 December 2016

20.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, a trade receivable
of HK$7,616,643 and an other receivable of
HK$20,058,594 of the Group were secured by an
item of intellectual property of a customer of the
Group. During the prior year, the Group had taken
the necessary steps to obtain the item of intellectua
property by exercising its rights over the collateral it
held as security. However, the Group was aware of a
civil suit filed by a third party in the United States of
America against this customer during the prior year due
to infringement of certain patents. The United States
International Trade Commission also imposed a limited
exclusive order to this customer during the prior year,
which prohibited the entry of the infringing electronic
devices and products of this customer with utilisation
of such intellectual property in the United States of
America. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
considered minimal future economic benefits could
be generated from this item of intellectual property to
the Group and no value was ascribed to it as at 31
December 2015. The Group did not have any policies or
detailed plans in respect of such item or for using it in
its operations. In the prior years, the Group recognised
a full provision for such trade receivable and other
receivable.
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20.

FE W AR R ()

RZE——F+=-_A=+—H' ' ~58
—ERWERTR7,616,643B T —SH
i & UL FRIE 20,058,594 B T AN SR B —
BEPH—IAMBEREERR - NEF
EAR - AEEBERDRETSR  B11E
BHEAFEIERER ZER M ZEFNM
BEERMNBERE - AT AEERE
FE—ZE=ZFARAFERNEREBILE
FTEMEMMZEEFPREREREFA -
THEBRESZESENEREFER
MZEEFER—BERIERS - 21E
ZEBRPHNAZBABEENE FEM
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R ZBENBERREIAGAREET
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FE AKERZZRBER L EME
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20.

Notes to

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

net of provisions, is as follows:

Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

FE W BR FX ()

RB|BEMR - RIBZFZA B RMGREE
% RUCRARREDHTANT

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—0F

HK$ HK$

78 T B JT

Within 30 days 30 AR 210,269,401 378,142
31 to 60 days 31 AE60K 575,117,263 732,627
61 to 90 days 61XZE 90K 312,799,342 341,779
Over 90 days 90 KA E 1,232,258 248,709,286
Total (note) e (KIsE) 1,099,418,264 250,161,834

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
approximately HK$681 million of the trade receivables
outstanding as of 31 December 2016 were settled.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

M FEHRE RZT—KE+=
A=+ BXAEENERERYD
681,000,000 &L EEE -

FEWBRSOR BB B =B T -

2016 2015
—E—-XRF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

At 1 January W—H—H 24,672,546 44,334,131
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE R A (24,672,546) (15,150,632)
Amount written off as uncollectible E AUk B il sE R £ %8 - (4,373,585)
Exchange realignment ME B - (137,368)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H - 24,672,546
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

— =

20.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2015,
provision for impairment of trade receivables was a

included in the above

provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$24,672,546 with a carrying amount before provision
of HK$32,399,114. The individually impaired trade
receivables related to debtors that were in financial
difficulties and/or were in default in payments and none
or only a portion of the receivables was expected to be
recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

20.

R_ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H8 " L£3®
FE W R OB BB R R B AT R E
B424,672,546 B LK E B L BB E K
JE U BR SRR B4 48 32,399,114 B 7T ° %5
18 51| 3580 (8 O FE U5 BR SR B2 P A B IR
SRR FENEEABR - WHEFT
Be iz [el s R gE Uk Bl — 2B A B A9 FE Uk 3R
15 o

I 48 45 45 2% 18 ) 28 2k RUR B 2 18 e AR R
ZHRERDMAT

2016 2015
—E-XREF —ET—FRF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Neither past due nor impaired R HA s R E 1,096,358,859 2,325
Less than 31 days past due BHDR 31K 264,787 55,770,542
31 to 60 days past due #HI31 K E 60K 963,594 614,517
61 to 90 days past due BH 61 K2 90K 598,766 341,780
Over 90 days past due AHIQ0 KM 1,232,258 185,706,102
1,099,418,264 242,435,266

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of diversified debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent debtors that have
a good track record/relationship with the Group and/
or are major/strategic debtors of the Group. Based on
past experience/current assessment, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

21.

—E—RFt+-H=+1 =)
LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. BEWER
2016 2015
—EB—-RE —ET—hF
HK$ HK$
T T
Loan receivables U E - 111,835,710

Loan receivables represented receivables arising from
financing services of the Group, and were unsecured,
bore interest at 12% per annum and were repayable
within 6 months from dates of agreement.

The Group did not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its loan receivable balances.

An aged analysis of the loan receivables that were not
considered to be impaired as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

EUREFEEAEETRRBEELENE
WkR  BERRRRFEMNER12EG
B WA B RN EAAEE -

AEBEY EREBUE RS RS ER
ER R EMERRENY -

R34 8RR 2B 8 B SRR R
B EKE S OERIFOT -

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—0F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired I 4 60 B SO (B - 90,635,710
1 to 3 months past due wmE1 = 31E A - 21,200,000
- 111,835,710
Loan receivables that were neither past due nor EWEHWERSSHE 8%y HE

impaired relate to independent borrowers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

BIYAERA - B A EMERA R o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E—RFt+=ZA=1 H
22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 22, EMNRIE -RERHEMENK
OTHER RECEIVABLES IE
Group
£
2016 2015
—E—-RXEF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments Bt FRIE 2,819,266 2,361,659
Deposits BmE 14,892,216 7,591,607
Other receivables H b U FRIR 2,140,193 468,966,505
Amount due from a controlling FE UL — A 15 AR AR R 3Kk
shareholder - 2,491,054
Amounts due from directors FEUE = 3E (M 5E 23)
(note 23) — 1,508,946
19,851,675 482,919,771
Impairment AE - (18,895,075)
19,851,675 464,024,696
Less: Portion classified as B Y BRIERBEENI D

non-current assets

(6,804,775) (3,095,346)

Current portion BNERER 53

13,046,900 460,929,350

Included in deposits amounting to HK$8,369,966
(2015: HK$5,490,490), are amounts of HK$6,425,191
(2015: HK$3,985,860) included in current assets and
HK$1,944,775 (2015: HK$1,504,630) included in non-
current assets in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position, which are non-interest-bearing
cash deposits paid to leasing companies under certain
arrangements as further detailed in note 27(c) to the
consolidated financial statements and will be returned
upon the expiry of the terms of the relevant agreements.
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# #08,369,966%8 (= T — A F -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—E—RE+-A=H H
22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 22, ERME - RERHMEW
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) FOIE (1)
Included in other receivables amounting to R-ZE—RF+_A=+—"8 NAE
HK$437,995,361 classified as current assets in the BIRNAREHBRATSEARDEEN
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as A #437,995,361 78 T B E Ath JE U IR E
at 31 December 2015 were, advances to suppliers and o AR BIREAEERERSELD
procurement agents associated with the provision of car HERLMEBEREBREMGfZ®H RNZT
rental services business of the Group. Other receivables —hF+—A=+—8  BR—£@E5&EH%
are non-interest-bearing, except for an individual 18,895,075 B LiEEF A 1.6 Bt BN+ E
balance of HK$18,895,075 as at 31 December 2015 B RIBEARE -
which bore interest at 1.6% per month.
The movements in provision for impairment of other Hip W ZOER R EREE ST -
receivables are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —FT—HhHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 18,895,075 33,172,049
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A A (18,895,075)  (14,276,974)

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - 18,895,075

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 542 € =R AR 2 & 167
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—

=3

22,

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, included in the above
provision for impairment of other receivables was a
provision for individually impaired other receivables
of HK$18,895,075 with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$18,895,075. The individually impaired
other receivables related to amounts that were long
outstanding or debtors of the Group that were in default
in payments and the other receivables or a portion
thereof were not expected to be recovered.

None of the above assets is impaired at the end of
the reporting period and the financial assets relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent
history of significant default or which are due from
independent debtors that have a good relationship with
the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R AR P

31 December 2016
—R"FTZA=1+—H

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS

Amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant to
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

23. BWEENE

RIREE X BHEBISE 383(1)(d) & B A 7
(REEFMGER)ROIEIMBER

Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information JEWWESRTIBHOT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2015 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January Security
2016 the year 2016 the year 2015 held
iy
“E-1%
i t=A
“E-RE =t-BR i
—A EREE ZE-AF EnBS -F-EF
Name e Sr=[% REEE -fA-H RERE —-fA-H Fris 547
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT B
Ms. Deng Shufen PhFnt - 905,368 905368 2,400,000 2,400,000 None £
Mr. Gui Bin EREE(RZZ—RF
(retired on 3 June 2016)  NA=HEM) = 301,789 301,789 800,000 800,000 None £
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan TERL - 301,789 301,789 800,000 800,000 None £
- 1,508,946 4,000,000

The amounts due from directors were unsecured,

interest-free and were repayable on demand. The

amounts were fully settled during the year.

EURESFAREERN REREEXR
B - RESHENFATREN -
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—

=3

24,

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24, BERBESEEYUREIE

AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT HRITER
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-hF
HK$ HK$
& T B IT
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTE & 35,037,364 5,050,455
Time deposits TE BRTF R 4,445,200 18,794,078
39,482,564 23,844,533

Less: Pledged deposit for a bank
borrowing (note 27(a))

B RITEETHE
HRER (I FE27(a)) -

(18,794,078)

Cash and cash equivalents

REeRRESEEY

39,482,564 5,050,455

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances, and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$1,276,870
(2015: HK$535,907) and HK$4,445,200 (2015:
HK$18,794,078), respectively. The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposit was
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earned interest at the short term
time deposit rate. The bank balances and time deposit
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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26.

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of

25

31 December 2016

T "Ft+=ZA=+—H

FE A BRK

REBEHR  REBEEFZAH - BHKRX

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as R DT ¢
follows:

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RHF
HK$ HK$
BT 75 7T
Within 30 days 30 KA 275,508 823,883
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 60,662 105,796
Over 60 days F NV 49,852 33,375,918
386,022 34,305,597

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the
credit terms granted by trade creditors are generally 30
to 90 days or 90 days after the month-end statement.

ENERRRE  MEZERALTH
EEMBM—MRAB/B0REI KR A ED

%o

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. H{thfE{f=h1E & FELHEh1E
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred revenue JEE A 864,798 1,037,992
Sundry payables FEfT IR & 14,856,593 11,988,449
Accruals FEETFUIE 3,173,771 2,557,253
18,895,162 15,583,694

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, sundry payables R-oE—XNER-_T—F%+—- 8

are non-interest-bearing and generally have credit terms
of around 30 to 90 days.

=t—H ENREBEEALSTFERR

BREA—MRAS0KEIOK
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E—R"Ft+-HA=+—H
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27. FFERTRHEMEBE
OTHER BORROWINGS
2016 2015
ZE-XE “Z-1f
Effective Effective interest
interest rate % Maturity HKS rate % Maturity HKS
AHER 4R A7 alE% 5#A B
Current; L
Bank borrowing — secured RfRE - BER(WEE) - - - 142% On demand 18,220,550
(note (@) EES
Bank borrowing — unsecured B7iRE - RER(WE () 10.2%  Ondemand 22,226,000 = - -
(note (0] REX
Other borrowings — secured Efofs€ - BER(E () 6.15% —10.47% 2017 3,119,088 6.15% ~10.17% 2016 7,879,609
(note (c))
Other borrowings — unsecured — EftfEE — BEE (I () 6.15% —14% 017 155,183,772 - - -
(note (d)
180,528,860 26,109,159
Non-current; FHH
Other borrowings — secured Efbfa® - BER(EE () 6.15% 2018 1987,708  6.15% —10.17% 2017 - 2018 5,404,574
(note (c))
Other borrowings — unsecured ~ Efofs€ - BER (I ()  6.15% —6.18% 2018 4,312,816 = = -
(note (d)
6,300,524 5,404,674
186,820,384 31,513,738
2016 2015
—E-XRF “T-HF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Analysed into: Vativ=
Bank and other borrowings repayable: AEBZRTREMEE
Within one year or on demand —FRFIREK 180,528,860 26,109,159
In the second year FF 6,300,524 3,300,963
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZRF(BEEEMT) - 2,103,611
186,829,384 31,513,733
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27.

Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2015, a bank borrowing of the
Group with a carrying amount of HK$18,229,550
contained a repayment on demand clause that gave
the lender the right to demand the repayment of the
bank borrowing together with interest accrued thereon
at any time. Accordingly, for the purpose of the above
analysis, the amount was analysed into bank borrowing
repayable within one year as at 31 December 2015.
The bank borrowing was secured by a pledged bank
deposit of HK$18,794,078 which was released upon
the settlement of bank borrowing during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, a bank borrowing of the
Group with a carrying amount of HK$22,226,000 (2015:
Nil) contained a repayment on demand clause that give
the lender the right to demand the repayment of the
bank borrowing together with interest accrued thereon
at any time. Accordingly, for the purpose of the above
analysis, the amount was analysed into bank borrowing
repayable within one year as at 31 December 2016.

During the year, the Group entered into certain sale
and lease back agreements with third-party leasing
companies (the “lessors”), with contract terms
ranging from two to three years. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the underlying transaction
is in substance a means whereby the lessors provide
finance to the Group for the purchases of certain
motor vehicles for its car rental business, with the
corresponding motor vehicles as security. Accordingly,
the Group has accounted for such transaction as
finance lease arrangements as substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the motor
vehicles are transferred to the Group.

-|_ /|_,\

fiax -

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

HEE @

R=ZZF—AF+=A=+—8" 4%
EEBEERERIERH—BRITE
EERHE18,229,550/8 L4 T E 7
R PAER R B REEZBITEE
ERHEEAFE - Bt gt EHSHT
ME ZEBEHAIMAR_ZT—RF
+ZA=1+—HERE—FREEN
IBITIER - RITEEUEBRITER
18,794,078 BT K IR - ERFAE
BIRITEERRER -

RZZT—R"F+=ZA=+—H  &&

BeAREREBRERZ —HRAT
&8 Z BRI (E 22,226,000 (= F
—hBF B G TEHRERNREME
@Eﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%%iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ

E°Em'% DIME @ A2
TOMER=F A$+ HA=+H
ﬂﬁﬁé-—fﬁﬂqﬁizgizﬁﬁftﬁ%Ei°

F$¢F AEBE-ZFE=JFHE

AF([HAEF D FIZE T HE RHEE
B SHOMNTREE=F - AR
AESERA HEXZEERHLER
AAKEREREZDN - WBER

TRERAEETEHEXK A
WIAAREEMIEE A - Hit - NEE
BREXZERBEHERHE AR

EITEA MR A RS E R K O #H
BEEBTAEHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E-—RFt+ZA=+—H
A /= < .
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27. FFERITREMEE @
OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued) et : (88)
(c) (continued) (c) (8)
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease R-ZT—R"E+-_A=+—8 " BE
payments under such arrangement and their present FRAZHENARREAHERENME
values were as follows: BT :
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE HEHE BEEE HEHE
ES ES NRRE MR E
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE —T-h%F —E-RE —E-RE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT AT
Amounts payable: 5008 -
Within one year —FR 3,344,360 8,512,805 3,119,088 7,879,609
In the second year F-ER 2,034,409 3,539,366 1,987,708 3,300,959
In the third year to fifth years, E-EFERF
inclusive (BEBEMRE) - 2,153,035 - 2,103,615
Total minimum finance lease RERERE
payments FEAE 5,378,789 14,205,206 5,106,796 13,284,183
Future finance charges AEBMEER (271,973) (921,023)
Total net finance lease payables MEAMERNFURRTAE 5,106,796 13,284,183
Portion classified as current liabilities 28 ARE & BN EHH (3,119,088) (7,879,609)
Non-current portion JEBNER SR 1,987,708 5,404,574

174 Annual Report 2016 =& — R EF 3R



27.

Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27.

OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) During the year, the Group borrowed HK$150,000,000
from a company pursuant to a loan agreement entered
into with a company, which, based on information
available to the directors of the Company, this company
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the other entity, which
the other entity is a joint venturer of the Group. The
loan is unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 14% per
annum and was originally repayable on 5 December
2016 but has been extended to 5 June 2017.

During the year, the Group also borrowed
RMB9,500,000 (approximately HK$11,080,000) from
a financing company. The loans are unsecured,
bear interests ranging from 6.15% to 6.18% and are
repayable by scheduled instalments in two years.

Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause
as detailed in notes (a) and (b) above and based on the
maturity terms of the bank and other borrowings, the
bank and other borrowings of the Group are repayable:

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

sTRRITRHEMERE @

MisE - (&)

(d) REN REEREHE—[BAQA
Y ZERBERAZAAEA
150,000,000/ 7T - IRIEA QNG ES
FBER AR BZEGERE 22
BEHBAR MzHEtEREALAEE

BEDE  ZERBERT RF
FEA4%T B BREERBA-T
—~"F+-_AARB " HEERE_Z
—+tFNARAB -

RERN AEETFR—HSHAD
A & A A R #9,500,000 (4
11,080,000 L) - ZEER A EK
R FR615EE6.18F A K
BRMENZBTZDPERKE
}%o

MR E IR BERERNTE(FR
£ EE (a) K (b)) RAR IR IRTT Be oAb A
ENIMEY  ARERTREMEES
MEEESHER

2016 2015

—E-XRE —T—hF

HK$ HKS$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 160,525,460 7,879,609

In the second year B _F 8,523,124 21,530,509
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=EERF

(BREEEMF) 17,780,800 2,103,615

186,829,384 31,513,733

Except for an other borrowing of HK$150,000,000
(2015: Nil) which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
all interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
the Group were denominated in Renminbi as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

BRUERTIEZ » - HfEE
150,000,000 7T(= & — A F : #&)
Sh RZB—RFET-_A=+—HBRZ
E-RAFt_-_A=t—8B X&EFE
FRSRITREMEEIAARKIIE -
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31 December 2016

— =

28.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

On 17 May 2016, the Company issued 2018 convertible
bonds and 2019 convertible bonds (collectively, the
“Convertible Bonds”) with principal amounts of
HK$100,000,000 and HK$100,000,000, respectively.
The maturity dates of 2018 convertible bonds and 2019
convertible bonds are 16 May 2018 and 16 May 2019,
respectively.

The Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of
the bondholder at any time after the 40th day from the
date of issue and up to the 10th day prior to the dates
of maturity at an initial conversion price of HK$0.35
per share (subject to adjustments). Based on the initial
conversion price, the Convertible Bonds are convertible
into approximately 571,428,570 ordinary shares of the
Company. Any Convertible Bonds not converted will
be redeemed at the outstanding principal amounts of
Convertible Bonds together with any interest accrued
thereon. The Convertible Bonds carry interest at a rate
of 5% per annum, which is payable semi-annually on
30 June and 31 December of a calendar year. The
effective interest rates of the liability components of
2018 convertible bonds and 2019 convertible bonds are
22.8% and 23.5%, respectively.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated
at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond if the conversion option is
not exercised. The conversion options embedded in
the Convertible Bonds were recognised as derivative
financial instruments and were measured at fair value on
initial recognition and remeasured at each subsequent
reporting date.
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28. TR EHFRITEMKETEA
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TZE-NFAIHEEFERZFT— N
FAmRES(HBIATRRES])
A & #2 % 5 5 A&100,000,000 7% T &
100,000,000/ 7T - — & — )\ F [ #i%
BEHFERZE—NFABRRBRESNE A
SHAEZZE-—N\NFRAT+AAER=_ZT
—NWEFERA+RA -

AHBREFFEATREITAREN L
BEZHA+BABEREEZER VA
BREAESROISHET(AFTHAE) -
THRBRESFEORBREREER ALY
571,428,570 8 AN A A WA T 1a] 14
ABRAOATRBRESFGRATRRES R
MRS EREFE(EFESED - AT
BREHEEFSEE  BEFIfH—
X REEBFMAAA=tBEE+=A
Zt—HBXf e ZE—NFAERESH
RZT-—NFrRREFEESIINE
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31 December 2016
NETZA=+—H

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movements of the liability and derivative

28. AR EFK

(&)

ERTHRRES BERTAHND 2 B

5
=
=

4=

7

EMBTAR

components of the Convertible Bonds for the year are BES T -
set out below:
Liability Derivative
component component Total
BEHS PTEE D @at
HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R=—Z—HFE—H—H
and 1 January 2016 —EZ-RF+-RA=+-H
RZE—~F—-H—-H - - -
Issue of Convertible Bonds* BRI RS 134,253,946 65,433,000 199,686,946
Interest expenses FIBERAXY 19,632,549 = 19,632,549
Interest paid BATFI2 (6,232,877) — (6,232,877)
Fair value gain on derivative ARREHFTESD 2
component of Convertible Bonds LFEERE - (1,847,000) (1,847,000)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=1—H 147,653,618 63,586,000 211,239,618

*

Included transaction costs of HK$313,054 arising from

the issue of Convertible Bonds.

HongDa Financial Holding Limited 543 € @12 R G FR A &)
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31 December 2016

—E-RFt+ZA=+—H
29. DEFERRED TAX 29, EZERHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FR EEHREEBEREENE SN
during the year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHEARE
Fair value
adjustments Fair value Depreciation
arising from of an allowance
acquisition available- in excess Deferred
of a for-sale of related development
subsidiary investment  depreciation costs Total
R W i — T BEEH
EraEEz FHEERE HEM BE
ALERE ZAYE mERf RGN L
HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2015 RZE-hA%—-HA—-H 17,911,028 - 152,368 400,997 18,464,393
Deferred tax credited to the FRRNERRFTAR
statement of profit or ERERHE
loss during the year* (425,073) - (148,355) (178,233) (751,661)
Deferred tax charged to the FARZERARMGOEL
statement of comprehensive 18
income during the year = 118,740 = = 118,740
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (4,013) (222,764) (226,777)
Exchange realignment AR (9,907) - - - (9,907)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE-RE+-A=+-H
31 December 2015 and at 1 RZB-~5-A-BH
January 2016 BRLHEARES 17,476,048 118,740 - - 17,594,788
Deferred tax credited to the FRRBRETAR
statement of profit or BB
loss during the year* (3,544,239) (118,740) - - (3,662,979)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZB—rE+ZA
at 31 December 2016 =+ BRERRE
ElEvie 13,931,809 - - - 13,931,809
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E-REtTZA=t+—H

29. EERHIE (@)
EEHRIEEE

Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
A 1K 88

a= & 18

HK$

BT

At 1 January 2015 N=E

Deferred tax charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year*
Disposal of subsidiary i

(lEPNG

—AF—H—H 553,365

FRRIBEE R AHELEHIE

(326,588)
(226,777)

Gross deferred tax assets at JIA
31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and

+

=%-mFt=A=t-A
— A F—A—AR-F—AE

at 31 December 2016 A=+—HB®8IE L%RIEQF B2 —
* Net deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement @ gzi_ T—NFE+_BA=1+—B8BItF
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 CEFAGAEBRROELEREF

amounted to HK$3,662,979 (2015: HK$425,073) (note

10).

ﬁ,ﬁ £3,662,979 m(Z T — A F -
425,073 7T) (FHFE10) °
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31 December 2016
—E—RFt+=-A= H

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29.
Deferred tax assets (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

EERIE (&)
FEIERIBEEE (&)

REINME  FTREERBEERAE
ERFEETBMRRNKRAEE - LTAN
SE MR HRE B DT ERER IR

+ .
ik

2016 2015
—E-XRF —F—hF

HK$ HK$

BT S

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 42 & BI ik & NFER K
the consolidated statement ELEMIEBE R
of financial position

13,931,809 17,694,788

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$112,594,000,
subject to agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that were available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong
of the companies in which the losses arose. During
the year, the tax losses were disposed along with the
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets were not
recognised in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$112,594,000 as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, it was not considered probable that
taxable profits would be available against which such
tax losses could be utilised.
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R-_TE—RAF+-_A=+—H &x&EE
EEBEENTIBA 112,594,000 7T
(ERBABERNREE) TERBAE
REEEBEBONRARREEBELEN
ERBUEF c RER - RIEBEDER
MBAR—fHE -

R_ZT—AF+-_A=+—8 BARA
NEIEEZRA B RIS R KA ERT
AR AERIEZERIEEE - NI E
T TE B 18 49 112,594,000 78 TTHE R IR
EHIEEE ©



29.

Notes to Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets had been recognised to the extent
that it was probable that future taxable profit would
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses could be utilised based on
management’s forecasted future taxable profits, which
are based on (i) the availability of taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity; (i) whether the unused tax
losses resulted from identifiable causes which were
unlikely to recur; and (iii) the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

29. IRIEFIIE (&)

1 5 7R SR & BR W 34 A1) DA 3 85 A] £ 8 AR A
AN EREZRE  MEENARATE
BekABABERBRE  AREBEEERE
ER)BEERBEERRERREE
BOAGERRBREREZRE : () RBAK
HEERTARETEBEZELMNAH
PBIREMEE X (jii) AR IR AE R &Y
A BE 3% A B A2 E Ko R R AR MRt B3R
%P7 TEOR O 2R 2R M8 AR 5% i ) e BRI RE A
HEE °
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31 December 2016

—E-REt+=ZA=+—H
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
Shares % 12
2016 2015
—E—-RXEF —ZFT—HhF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JATE
20,000,000,000 (2015: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 A&
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZE—RF:
20,000,000,000 %) &%
E{E0.01 8 T @ 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTERER
6,501,415,000 (2015: 6,481,375,000) 6,501,415,000 (= —H
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 4 : 6,481,375,000 %) &
R TI1E 0.01 /B L& Bk 65,014,150 64,813,750
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31 December 2016

—E-REtTZA=t+—H
30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 30. A
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued AKARBBEITRAEH 2 HEOT :
share capital is as follows:
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BRTRAZE BRETRA R % E R @t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2015 —h%¥—H—H 4,081,375,000 40,813,750 372,189,470 413,003,220
Issue of new shares in HHEREEREN
connection with the Fix (3 (a))
Connected Placing
(note (a)) 1,500,000,000 15,000,000 151,000,000 166,000,000
Exercise of share options RHERESBEIE
in connection with the BERE (M+E (a)
Connecting Placing
(note (a)) 400,000,000 4,000,000 212,000,000 216,000,000
Issue of new shares in MEEEEIET
connection with the ik (HE ()
Placing Il (note (b)) 500,000,000 5,000,000 145,000,000 150,000,000
2,400,000,000 24,000,000 508,000,000 532,000,000
Share issue expenses BHETER — - (5,484,684) (5,484,684)
At 31 December 2015 and at R=T—HF
1 January 2016 F=f ==
—EREF- H H 6,481,375,000 64,813,750 874,704,786 939,518,536
Exercise of warrants (note (c)) 1T{E:RMAEE (P (c) 20,040,000 200,400 2,928,417 3,128,817
At 31 December 2016 RZT—AF
JF—)EI_JF H 6,501,415,000 65,014,150 877,633,203 942,647,353
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~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 15 June 2015, pursuant to a placing agreement
dated 26 March 2015, between the Company and a
placing agent, the Company completed a placing of
an aggregate of 1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.26 per share, with
grant of 800,000,000 option shares at an exercise price
of HK$0.26 per option share issued to Sino Merchant
(the “Connected Placing”). Sino Merchant is the
controlling shareholder which held approximately 67.4%
of equity interests of the Company immediately after
the completion of the placing agreement. Details of the
share placement were contained in the announcements
of the Company dated 26 March 2015 and 15 June
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 28 April
2015. The fair value of share options issued on 15
June 2015 was HK$224,000,000 and such amount was
charged against the Company’s share premium account
in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 400,000,000
option shares were exercised by Sino Merchant at
an exercise price of HK$0.26 per option share. The
exercise amount including the related share option
reserve in excess of the par value of the ordinary
shares amounting to HK$212,000,000 was credited to
the share premium account.

On 3 August 2015, the Group completed a placing of a
maximum of 500,000,000 new shares to not less than
six placees at a price of HK$0.30 per placing share
(the “Placing II”). Details of the share placement were
contained in the announcements of the Company dated
10 July 2015 and 3 August 2015.

On 17 November 2016, 20,040,000 warrant shares
were issued as the subscription rights attaching to
the warrants amounting to HK$2,204,400 had been
exercised at a price of HK$0.11 per warrant share by
a warrant subscriber. An amount of HK$924,417 was
transferred from the warrant reserve to share premium
account upon the exercise of the warrants.
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HiaE
0 R-B—FEAA+HEE  BEA

ARERERBER _ZT—HE=A
ZHRAFUNEEHZE  ARRIE
REROBILZERTREES
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TLHET L R - Wik SR EBRERD
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EREEE|) EnHERNERES
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30.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Warrants:

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
issued unlisted warrants to an independent third party
(the “Warrant Subscriber”) as part of the conditions
for the provision of a loan facility of HK$50 million by
the Warrant Subscriber to the Group for a period of
5 years. The warrants entitle the Warrant Subscriber
to subscribe up to HK$16,807,500 in aggregate, in
cash for ordinary shares of the Company at an original
subscription price of HK$0.27 per share, subject to
adjustments, at any time during the period from 31
October 2012 to 30 October 2017.

During the prior years, as a result of the completion of
several open offers and placings of the Company, the
subscription price of the outstanding warrants had been
adjusted to HK$0.12 per share pursuant to the terms of
the instrument relating to the warrants. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, as a result of the completion
of the connected placing in June 2015, the subscription
price of the outstanding warrants was further adjusted
to HK$0.11 per share pursuant to the terms of the
instrument relating to the warrants.

On 17 November 2016, 20,040,000 warrants were
exercised at a price of HK$0.11 per warrant share by
the Warrants Subscriber. At the end of the reporting
period, the Company had 132,755,454 warrants
outstanding. The exercise in full of such warrants would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 132,755,454 additional shares.

30.

B R T
31 December 2016
—E—AFt=A=+—H

i NE D)
AIRER

IR

HEZZ—-—F+-A=+—HLHF
B AEBH—EZBLE=F((RKRE
BRBE )BITELTMRRESE R
REEEFRBE I AAERRE—ERSF
HA 4858 50,000,000 7 7T B 3B & K 2019
G- EERREER TR EZRE
FER AR —Z—F+A=+—H
E-T—+F+A=1+HHMERA - BER
NRERRABESR27ET(AI T
AR )RERZ S $£16,807,500/8 LY
ARal L@ e

HRARREBTEAEFETHKERD
FEE RIRESEE - B8 ARTTHERRE
EFHRBECREEBRREZ RN
ERMAREER0I2BT HE-Z
—RAF+ZA=T—HLEFE  HRE
T -RAFANATKEERE - R
TERBREE 2 REBEERBERRESE
HEAXE 2 G E— T RABEZFRO0.11
BT ©

RZZBE—ARE+—A+tH - RREE
RBHREBRBREZRN 0.11 B TH
B 171£20,040,000 15 R HEE G -
K& IR - NAFH 132,755,454 17
RREZFEREA - BEARAERZ
RAZEE  BHITEZERREEFE
B/EE1T 182,755,454 BEEINRAD ©
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— =

31.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement

On 11 August 2011, Perception Digital BVI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a supply chain management
agreement (the “Supply Chain Agreement”)
with Teleepoch Limited (“Teleepoch”), pursuant
to which, Perception Digital BVI, together with
its subsidiaries, will act as the exclusive supply
chain partner of Teleepoch for a term of three
years. In consideration of Teleepoch entering
into the Supply Chain Agreement, the Company
entered into an option agreement (the “Option
Agreement”) with Teleepoch, pursuant to which
the Company granted an option to Teleepoch,
entitling Teleepoch to subscribe for originally a
maximum of 15,500,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (individually, the “Upfront Option”),
representing approximately 2.5% of the then
issued share capital of the Company, at an
original exercise price of HK$0.38 per share.
The Upfront Option was vested on 11 November
2011 and was exercisable in whole or in part
during the period from 11 November 2011 to 10
August 2016.

In addition to the Upfront Option, the Company
also conditionally granted to Teleepoch an
option to subscribe for 0.285 shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.38 per
share (the “Performance Option”) for every
HK$1.0 of net profit to the Company generated
from sales orders placed by the clients of
Teleepoch (the “Performance Benchmark”),
subject to originally a maximum of 46,750,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 7.5% of the then issued share
capital of the Company. On each anniversary
date during the term of the Supply Chain
Agreement, a portion of the Performance Option
should be vested and became exercisable. The
number of shares which Teleepoch should be
entitled to subscribe for pursuant to such vested
portion of the Performance Option should be
determined by reference to the Performance
Benchmark for the previous year. Subject to such
vesting condition, the Performance Option could
be exercised in whole or in part at any time
during the period from 11 August 2012 to 10
August 2016.
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RESEBEREZH

(a)

HEBEEHRET 2B
R

R=ZZE——FN\NA+—H8"
Perception Digital BVI(Z A 7]
M2 & ME A R))E Teleepoch
Limited ([ Teleepoch |) ] 37 4
FEGRE IR ER ([ HEEGE]) -
¥t - Perception Digital BVIE
&) H Bt 8 A & # ¥ £ Teleepoch
BREEERME  BEH=F - F
& Teleepoch 7T 37 i FE $2 1 &%
KB N2 AFHETeleepoch ] 37
EhEpZ(BREBSE])
B AN A 7 [ Teleepoch #%
LERE ZSERERT
Teleepoch# 7 + 7] #& R 97 &
BEROIBETRERRES
15,500,000 AR A" A 71 @ AR ([ 8
—RIHAERE])  EENARAA
EREBEITIRAL 2.5% - Al HARE
BREER_T—F+—A+—
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MAREEBHE D TTIE ©
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% b 17) Teleepoch % H B8 A% 4 -
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TR T7.5% o PN fE §8 177 &
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Notes to Financial Statements

31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

31. KRH#E

B 53R 2% B
31 December 2016
—T-A"FTZA=t+—H

EEBREZHE®R

(a) Share Options under a Supply Chain () HESEESEHRBIET 2B
Management Agreement (continued) BRAE(E)
Both the Upfront Option and the Performance A B B A A T 3% 3R BB AR M (AT 1R
Option (collectively, the “Options”) were granted [BRE])IREBRARAGIR_E
under the general and unconditional mandate —— R ANBRITZRFBE
granted to the directors of the Company pursuant ARELBBCEBRABZEETAR
to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed NAES—MEEKEREMR
at the annual general meeting held on 6 May g AR - BT REEARAQA
2011 to allot, issue and deal with up to 20% of EREEITRARZ 20% °
the then issued share capital of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, as HE-_ZT—NOF+=-A=+—H
a result of the completion of the Open Offer IEFE BARZZE—WHF— A%
in January 2014, the exercise price of the BRAREE - BURARITE B E
outstanding Options and the number of shares ZITEREBERATERKRITEBR
that could be subscribed for upon the exercise EATREZROHBEEL2RE
of the outstanding Options were adjusted R E 2 ERIEL AR (T8 —
(individually, the “Option Adjustment’) pursuant BRERE]) -
to the terms of the Option Agreement.
These options were expired and lapsed on 10 ZEBEREREBEREERRER
August 2016 pursuant to the terms of the Option. ZE-RNFENATABERRER
The following Options were outstanding under the REA - TIHBRERERBIRE
Option Agreement during the year: 1op 5% 18 R IEF T -
2016 2015
ZB-RE —T-AF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average
exercise of exercise Number of
price options price options
MEF 13 MEE
TEE  BREZE 1EE B ARSI B
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRER SRBT
At 1 January ®—A—H 0.233 101,519,537 0.233 101,519,537
Expired during the year RERER 0.233  (101,519,537) =
At 31 December R+=R=+—H - 0.233 101,519,537
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31 December 2016
— T RNFt+=ZA=+—H

31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(@) Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

The exercise price after the Option Adjustment
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
exercise period of the Options outstanding as at
31 December 2015 are as follows:

Number of options
after the Option

Adjustment Exercise price*
BRERERZ

BRERE TEE*

HK$ per share

BB T

25,277,957 0.233

76,241,580/ 0.233
101,519,537

The exercise price of the Options was subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues,
or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

A The number of the Performance Option and the
period that the Performance Option became
vested and exercisable were subject to the
achievement of the Performance Benchmark.

At 31 December 2016, all the outstanding share
options under the Scheme lapsed.

(b) During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no equity-settled share option expense
under HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment was
recognised by the Group.
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31.

REGEBEREZE@®

(@) HEBEEHBERIN 2B
R #E ()

HE-_ZT—AF+=-A=+—H
LEFEEREARR 2 ITFEER
RZE—RFE+_A=1+—HH
RITEBREZTFERARAT -

Exercise period

1TEH

11 November 2011 to 10 August 2016
—E——%+—A+—H
E-T—R"EN\HATH
11 August 2012 to 10 August 20162
—E——HF#N\A+—H
ZE-RENATAA

* fil AT PR KA PR B AT A
RAA Z KB
BREZITRER THE -

A RERRERE REBMA
TERABIRE 2 MRAR
EHRBEETHAER

R=ZT—R"FE+=A=+—8
Zt BT T FT A i AR 1T (50 i AR
BREK -

b) REE-_ZFT-—A"EFR-ZFT—AF
TZA=1T—RHLFE X&E
VEBERBEMHERELEE2
SRR 7S50 1R T 2 B
REBRERX -



32.

33.

Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 76 and 77 of the financial statements.

The Group’s capital reserve originally represented (i)
the excess of the nominal value of the shares and
the share premium account of Perception Digital BVI
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2009,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor; and (ii) the waiver of amounts
due to certain parties related to certain then beneficial

shareholders of the Company.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group entered into finance lease arrangements in
respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the leases
of HK$$9,840,000.

32.

33.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016

&

AEBRENZTERERAFEE KRBT
FEMEHE2I N BERREI6ER
TTEREGEEREEFHRNA -

AEEMNERAREBEREONRE=_SZAN
FHEBEHAUEEH Perception Digital
BVIRh BEEEKEHD RERSRAR A
EARBMBITORMOEE K (i) &
RERNEAARRETERESRES
BEmNE T ALTHRIE -

RERERBERMEE

(@) FEHFREXRH

REBEEZZTE—HAF+ZA=+—
BIEFE AKEERYE -
BEEIRBILREHEER
o HELARBIAELRAER
9,840,000 7T °
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BB R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33. RERERERMT )
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEHEBAFE
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE2-=E—-—X<H+=-HA=+—H
IEEE
2016
Total
—E-RE
st
Notes HK$
Bt BT
Net liabilities disposed of: EHEBERE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE k& 13 4,409
Inventories TE 849,925
Trade receivables FEUBR R 8,255,773
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BANHE  ReREMEK
HE 8,614,032
Cash and bank balances B RRITER 300,355
Trade payables B3R (32,506,392)
Other payables and accruals HEiEAFEREAE A (1,121,368)
(15,603,266)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR < e 11 15,603,267
1
Satisfied by: PATRBITTE (R -
Cash e 1
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B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

T "Ft+=ZA=+—H
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33. ZREBEETREXRMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEMEARE
Year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) BE-Z2—X<E+=-H=+—H
LEFEE(E)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and LEMBAA e RREEE
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of Y2 FRADITAT ¢
subsidiaries is as follows:
2016
Total
—E—RE¥
et
HK$
BT
Cash consideration HeRE 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHERE RIBITAE (300,355)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMBARIZRE &
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEBWFERD (300,354)
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015

33.

MEBRESRERMTE W

(b) HEHEXR G

Bz +=-H=+—H

IHEE
2015
Total
—ET—0F
e
Notes HK$
B =E BT
Net liabilities disposed of: EHEBEEE
Property, plant and equipment E =N 13 579,793
Deferred development costs 5 T [ B A AR 18 1,391,626
Long term deposits RHEES 161,728
Inventories & 103,749
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K 2,241,250
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - Ee
receivables R H th e W 5k I8 1,095,961
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 868,700
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTEEH 7,370,904
Trade payables FEFBR SR (719,267)
Other payables and accruals H fth & A 5RIB R FE R RUIR (12,360,387)
Tax payable FEI BT (851,491)
(117,434)
Release of exchange reserve upon HEH B AR R ED
disposal of subsidiaries b 5 R (2,797,029)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A a2 W 11 2,982,161
67,698
Satisfied by: ATFIEAER
Cash Be 67,698
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

33. mEBREREXRKTF @

(b) HEKRBQRE)

BE-FT-A%+t=-A=t+—H
Y 1C))

HEMBARZRE MRS FE

cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of Y ZFREDTOT ¢
subsidiaries is as follows:
2015
Total
—E-hF
K5t
HK$
BT
Cash consideration ReRE 67,698
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHER S MR1TTHES (7,370,904)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEHNBARZEE R
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries REEBWFRD (7,303,206)

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities.

The Company has given a guarantee to a landlord in
connection with a tenancy agreement entered into by
a subsidiary of the Company during the current year
for the leasing of an office premise. The total future
minimum lease payments under the corresponding
non-cancellable operating lease which will end in May
2017 amounted to approximately HK$1,710,900 (2015:
HK$5,817,000) as at 31 December 2016.

34. HAERE

RBEHR - AEELELAMEKRLA
BfE-

RRRIEARAFERN—EEBLER B
B—OBEARARZHBARRFEANAR
HE—BMAEMEMITLZ2AE R
MEFHBEER R-ZZT—<F+=A
=+—H  HETATRECERENR
REEEWEEREHAEE A1,710,900
BIL(ZZE—AF 5,817,000 7T ) °
EHER—_Z—tFRAEIH-
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E—RF+ A=A H

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its motor vehicles and
subleases its office premises under operating
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to four years while certain
leases can be early terminated by serving five
days to three months’ notice or paying 10% to
30% of total remaining unpaid leases payments.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its customers and tenants
falling due as follows:

SRR B

ne =5

(a)

=MHEZ 5
EREHER

AEERELKEHELHHHEE
MAEME  KEBOEHENF
—ENF - ETHOTERHKR
BE=EABMRAL AT H
A HE 2 E10% = 30% 1% 12
Rl

RZE—RFE+ZA=+—8"
AEEREREBERBFEIL
MRS S A E SR AT
5 5 B 9 R 2R &% (K B W FR & 5K 1E
R

Group
£E8
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 9,049,275 6,209,191

Annual Report 2016 =& — N E £ 3R



Notes to Financial Statements

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases its office premises and certain
of its office equipment and motor vehicles under
operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five
years while certain leases can be early terminated
generally by serving fifteen days to two months’
notice or paying 15% to 30% of total remaining
unpaid leases payments.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

35.

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

(b) ERFEBES

AEBERBELKEHERHHER
WAEMERBETHLIEHREMN
RAa®E  KEFHEAN T —F
ERE - BETHOBEIEREHE
THRRXEME A BB 8
THEAZHHESM15%ZE30%
% REPIE -

RZE—RNF+-_A=+—80"
AEERBIIHELEHEE R
RUATHBE AR REEEE

NRRBENT -
Group
58

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—hF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 18,252,502 2,460,900
In the second to fifth years, inclusive —FEERF

(BIEEREMSE) 24,804,387 =

43,056,889 2,460,900
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E-—RFt+ZA=+—H

36. COMMITMENTS 36. &iE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B | SCHT 5E35(b) Fr il 2 48 & 70 & & IE
in note 35(b) above, the Group’s share of the joint N ENREFY| 2 ANEBRE Z N A BT
venture’s own capital commitments, which are not VER 7 BAEENT -

included in the above, is as follows:

Group
£H
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contracted, but not provided for BRI ERFHRER - 13,250
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid or payable to the
Company’s directors, is as follows:

37.

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

BEALRS

BRREMBHRREME D AFRNRZ S
Sh REBEBEBEALET TR

Nl

AEBETEEBABZHEM  BHEN
KENTARREZTZEBWT

Group
&5

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—AF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short term employee benefits MEEERA 8,227,746 6,100,000

Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 7 61,500 18,000
Total compensation paid or payable to key MEZEIEAB T3k

management personnel BB BNE 2% 8,289,246 6,118,000

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEFNE —THEBIRGREVE®
FMIEES ©
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E—R"Ft+-HA=+—H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. REHFETHWHEIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of AREEIR  SEMBITANEREEWN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting S

period are as follows:

Group =
HEEE

Financial assets

2016 2015
E-RE “T-0E
Available- Available-
Loans for-sale Loans for-sale
and financial and financial
receivables assets Total rece\vab\es asset Total
ERR e AR E
e FREE ok TR AT AR 5
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT B BT AT BT BT
Avallable-for-sale AHERE
investment - 112,000,000 112,000,000 - 39,987,400 39,987,400
Trade receivables JEMER TR 1,099,418,264 - 1,099,418,264 250,161,834 — 250,161,834
Loan receivables ERER - - - 111,835,710 111,835,710
Financial assets included in 3| \JE 502 -
prepayments, deposits 154 R E el
and other receivables  FEREHAE 17,082,409 - 17,032,409 461,663,037 — 461,663,037
Amount due from a ER—REELA
joint venture HE 11,013,373 - 11,013,373 10,172,985 - 10,172,985
Pledged bank deposit ~ EERRITER - - - 18,794,078 — 18,794,078
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kB £ 5B 39,482,564 - 39,482,564 5,050,455 = 5,050,455

1,166,946,610 112,000,000 1,278,946,610 857,678,099 39,987,400 897,665,499
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B 755 R AR P

31 December 2016

—ZE-—RE+ZA=+—H
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. RERESTHNUBI A
CATEGORY (continued)
Group 58
Financial liabilities HEERE
2016 2015
—E-XE —T-hF
Financial
liabilities
at fair
value Financial Financial
through liabilities at liabilities at
profit or  amortised amortised
loss cost Total cost
BAYE REHELX R SRR
FFABHEZ S8R i1l
BRas HM¥aR mat B aE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Derivative financial instruments #74M#&ET A 63,586,000 — 63,586,000 —
Trade payables ANE - 386,022 386,022 34,305,597
Financial liabilities included in 3 At & {5 5178 K
other payables and accruals T RIE KA E - 6,605,167 6,605,167 6,860,148
Convertible bonds AR &S — 147,653,618 147,653,618 —
Interest-bearing bank and SFERITREMER
other borrowings — 186,829,384 186,829,384 31,513,733

63,586,000 341,474,191 405,060,191 72,679,478
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s

financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

as follows:

f& 4%

39. B TANATFERATE

REEESEZROIEAFEZHMH TR

SN
mF

SEMBTAZEERENRATE

Carrying amounts Fair values
RREE DNFE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-Rf —T-1F ZB-RFf —T-IF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets: B A E
Available-for-sale AEHERE
investments 112,000,000 39,987,400 112,000,000 39,987,400
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ATE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-RF —T-HF ZEB-RF "T-0F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial liabilities: MBaE
Derivative financial TEMBIE
instruments 63,586,000 — 63,586,000 —
Convertible bonds — liability ~— Al#RES — BES
component 2 147,653,618 — 156,077,000 =
211,239,618 — 219,663,000 —
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Notes to Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, the current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
and an amount due from a joint venture approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015 was assessed to be
insignificant.

39.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

B &% (@)

BEEEEBNNE  EEARRAe RS
HEY D EARITER - BUER
FERTERAR - At AR S R E AR B YRR A
MBEE - st AR B kB R
HEWM B EE - FERRTTREME S
O URER—HREERB 22BN
RHARE BEZETAZAFERAR
FREEMES -

MBEERBENAFERERERRS
CRAFBRUERIMNPENBERE
BATANBHEE -

AT IEMBRE ARG AFE

SAERTREMEEEBERGK  F
ERBMF A BAHRBROBEUNTA
WMEBRFEMEERARARRESREM
STEERSBINAFE - R=ZZT—X
FH+ZA=+—RHARZZE—RF+=A
=t+—8 AEEASHFTEBRITRE
e ENTRORBRW TG AL TEK -
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

— =

39.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 has been estimated using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on assumptions that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to make estimates about
the expected future cash flows including expected future
dividends and proceeds on subsequent disposal of the
investment. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period. The fair vale
of another unlisted available-for-sale equity investment
that was acquired during the year is determined using
the market approach based on certain arm-length third
party transactions.

The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible
bonds is estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate
for a similar convertible bond with consideration of
the Group’s own non-performance risk. Derivative
financial instruments are measured using present value
calculations.

Annual Report 2016 =& — N E £ 3R

39.

=R e D

RZE—RFE+_A=+—HEK=_ZF
—hHE+ZA=+—H8 AJ#HEEFLE
MEZRENATFELFERMERS R
EMEER IR IE A B M E sk
Y RHZBERMEFIFE c ZHEERE
ERFEEHARE S RE (BIETEBARKK
BREBHEZIZRE 2MBRIE) LG
o EEMAG  BMERTDME2MET
NEEREGEETBRAEAR) RATF
B HEEZEH(REMEEBRAAR)E
£ ARRBmEHRcEREEE -
FAKB 2z —RALTMAHEERE
WEZATFEDRAERE TREAFE
RZB=ARG L TI5AEEE °
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

Notes to Financial Statements

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2016

and 31 December 2015:

Valuation
technique

fhET %

As at 31 December

2016
R=-ZZE—-—XE+=A
=t+-H

Unlisted available-

for-sale equity flow method
investment HemERE
JEEMAHEEE
BmiZE
Unlisted available- Third-party
for-sale equity quotation
investment FE=FWE
REMAIHEE
IR iER &

Discounted cash

Significant
unobservable input

EXRFTUEERAYE

The key inputs are
long term growth
rate for cash
flows, weighted
average cost of
capital (WACC) and
discount for lack of
marketability and
control

T2HABBAREAR

EmBRE - NEF
HE R HNREF
HERKAR) R E R
Z BN 5 I )
V4T 40

Third-party pricing
information

F=TEBRER

39.

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—E—RFt+=ZA=H H
BETENLAFERAFE
8 &% ®)
TRER-_E—R"FE+-_A=1+—"HEK

:%—£¢+f

A=+—BMBEITARK

BZEXTABEGABEMEERT
BHRENT

Amount

B

Long term
growth rate of
3%, WACC of

20% and
discount rate
for lack of
marketability
market and
control of 36%
are applied
J& FA 3% & Hf
BERE . 20%
g ER
BRAR ~ BRZ T
ST e
H2iEER
36% 15 il
HK$

112,000,000
BT

Sensitivity of fair

value to the input

ZRBZ A FEZ
HRE

The investment had
been fully impaired
during the year
(note 17). A change
in these key inputs
within a reasonable
range would not
result in a significant
change in the fair
value.

ZRECRAFEEEH
WEHEE7) - %%

TERABBERAIEESH

IWZ“@M$A‘ﬁ
NP EEERE

5% increase/decrease
in third party pricing
information would
result in increase/
decrease in fair value
by HK$5,600,000

FE=FEEEREM/
5% KHEH N TE
#hn /"4 5,600,000
BIT
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E-—RFt+ZA=+—H
39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39. IBITENAFERAEE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL & =)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
HERE E XTI BERE ABE HE ZBEZ2AFEZ
BRE
As at 31 December
2016 (continued)
R=-ZF—XE+=A8
=+—HB(&)
Derivative financial Binomial model Volatility 56-71% 10% increase/decrease
instruments 1A EA ] in volatility would
MEeMITA result in increase/

decrease in fair value
by HK$6,875,047/
HK$7,106,624
RIRIE N /R 10% 1%
BYNFAEEN /R
16,875,047 T /
7,106,624 T

Liquidity spread 7.48% 1% increase/decrease

MEMEEE in liquidity spread
result in decrease/
increase in fair value
by HK$3,777,710/
HK$3,884,924

TBNMEEZIE N / R

1% B EH A FERD
/3,777,710 T
/ 3,884,924 T

Discount rate 12% 1% increase/decrease

BhIR % in discount rate
result in decrease/
increase in fair value
by HK$2,089,532/
HK$2,134,967

BEIREIE N /A 1%

BYRFERLD /18
702,089,532 7T /
2,134,967 BT
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuation
technique

RET %

As at 31 December
2015

R=-ZE—HE+=AH
=t=F

Discounted cash
flow method
HemEIRE

Unlisted available-
for-sale equity
investment

JEEMAHEEE
IR E

Significant
unobservable input

EXRTUEERAYE

Long term growth rate
for cash flows
RBRSRERX

WACC

DIFE 15 B AN AR

Discount for lack of
marketability and
control

Bl iR = it B 77 355 R #2E o
T

Amount

B

3%

21%

36%

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016
—E-REtTZA=t+—H

METENLAFERAFE
8 & &)

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

ZBEz2AVEZ
BRE
1%

increase/decrease in
growth rate would
result in increase/
decrease in fair value
by HK$3,528,300/
HK$4,704,400

R EIE, A 1%
1S BAFEE M
B> 3,528,300 7 7T
/ 4,704,40078 7T

1%

increase/decrease in
WACC would result
in decrease/increase
in fair value by
HK$5,880,500

DNHE 15 & AN B AR I
/A 1% 15 BB
RNEER D 1800
5,880,500 7% 7T

1%

increase/decrease
in discount would
result in decrease/
increase in fair value
by HK$1,167,100

P, R 1% K&
BAFERD
1,167,100 7T
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E-R"Ft-A=t—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39. MIBITEMNAFERAFE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL fE& &% )
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The discount for lack of marketability represents the ASEEMH TN EINEREAERZATER
amount of discounts determined by the Group that HEEANETERSEZENITESSE -

market participants would take into account when
pricing the investment.

Fair value hierarchy NEEEBH

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TEIRAEEME T A A FES
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: B4

Assets measured at fair value: URFEFHEHESE :

Fair value measurement using
RAUTEAFEATE

Quoted prices  Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXABE EAFTEE

RERTEH BARE BAYE

BEE-R) (B=H) (F=%) faz
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE—-AE+=A
=+-H
Available-for-sale investment; AELERE
Unlisted equity investment FEmERRE - — 112,000,000 112,000,000
As at 31 December 2015 R-B-R&E+=A
=t+—-8
Available-for-sale investment; AEHERE
Unlisted equity investment FEMERRE - — 39,987,400 39,987,400
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Notes to Financial Statements

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39.
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

3 during the year are as follows:

B 755 R AR P

31 December 2016
T ~F+t=A=+—H

METENLAFERAFE
8 & &)

FRAE=RZATVEFEZBNT -

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Available-for-sale investments — unlisted: At HERE — JE LT -
At 1 January n—A—H 39,987,400 1,260,000
Purchases R 112,000,000 39,544,600
Disposals HE - (1,116,900)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33(b)) HE—RWNEBRF]
(P 3E33(b)) - (868,700)
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in other RHM 2 EK AR 2
comprehensive income ANEERE(E8) (39,987,400) 1,187,400
Exchange realignment b 5 A - (19,000)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 112,000,000 39,987,400
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016

—E-RFt+ZA=+—H
39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39. IR TENAFERAYE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL =R e
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value DAFEFEZEE
Fair value measurement using
RRAATHFRFELTE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REET S EXUHE EXTIBE
ZHE BARE BARE
(E—1) (B=%) (F=4) @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2016 RZF-AEt-A=1-H
Derivative financial instruments TR T A - - 63,586,000 63,586,000
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZZE—RAF+=-—A=+—H ' ' ~5H
at fair value as at 31 December 2015. WEERTEABENIEAFETE ©
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN UBEERVBABRE —REE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers — B ELAAFEFEERE - R
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and EYBKEERTBEBEEARBEHE=
financial liabilities (2015: Nil). B ZE—RF  |)o
Liabilities for which fair values are EHEAFENERS
disclosed
Fair value measurement using
BRAATHFRAELTE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERH 5 EAAHRE EAFTEE
ZHE BAYE BAYE
(F—1%) (%) (B=H) a@ct
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—~E+ZA=+—A
Convertible Bonds AR ES - - 156,077,000 156,077,000
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, a pledged bank deposit
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance/raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables, an amount due from a joint venture,
an available-for-sale investments, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
the Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group with fixed interest rates. The
Group currently does not have any fair value interest
rate hedging policy. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

40.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

Bt i b B 32 B R R BUR

AEENFENBHITATBENTET
R)BREFASRITREMES - AIBRK
Ex BEARTERLRBESNEESSE
BY ZEZUHEIANTIERRIIRA
SENEERE RHEES - AEEE
BEZRAMMBEERAR MR
F o IAEE REMEEFENT B E
E-—HEK-KEERRME - AH
HERE - AR A R AE AR
REANMEAFANMBAE  TBEHR
AEENBEREEERESE -

AEBVMBITAEENTEZERR RN X
Rk SNERR EERRRABDES
B - EFgRI RiHEEESHLLF
[RBR B BRR - 2Bt o

AR E R

RZE—RF+_A=Z+—HEK=_ZFT
—hE+ZA=1+—H8 XEBEZEARK
EEZEENEGT ST SRITREM
BEARZANFEMEXRR - AEE B Al
WA A FEF R ERBOR - A -
EHEEBRAETERESEY PERD
A o
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
— T RNFt+=ZA=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures primarily arise from revenue and
other income generated, and cost and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than
the Group’s operating units’ functional currencies.
For the Group’s operating units’ that have the United
States dollar (“US$”) as their functional currency,
their foreign currency transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As the Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”) is pegged to the US$ within a
narrow band, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate. Accordingly,
management considers that the Group’s foreign
currency risk exposure for US$ is not significant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax.

MEEREREBFERBKR

=

(#5 )
SMNEE = B

AEBERHRHEERR - Z2ZRBD
FEARUAREBELES I BN
SN EBHENESEEMMERE RE
o I A BA R BT EE AR B9 RN AR Ko S I BT R o
HRAKBNUET(ERTDERED
BEEEMEEEN  EREE T — N
ER_E—RF+_A=1+—HItFE
RIINER B+ LA R RS B R Z BN
INBEHENEBEERBE HEEN
BB - ARE T[T ) EBETE
RERMRBEANZS  AEBEFELE
BILHIEERTE HIRERERED) -
It EEERABASENETIMNE R
WAREK -

TEMERARSEE SRS
B EEMBHRHETEZERT  #
7 85 1 0 45 R 2 44T R 8 0 G
BHIF -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
RMB in loss
rate before tax
ARBER B Tt B 5 18
#im,Cms) S Omd)
HK$
% B IT
2016 —E-RE
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against /&7t 5 A R E
the RMB 5.0 (4,773)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREAE
against the RMB (5.0 4,773
2015 —E-RF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against {87t AR E
the RMB 5.0 (939,704)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens WBTHAREHE
against the RMB (5.0) 939,704
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit with recognised
and creditworthy third parties or with customers
with long term/strategic relationships. The receivable
balances of the Group are monitored by senior
management on an ongoing basis. Since the Group
primarily trades on credit with recognised and
creditworthy third parties or with customers with
long term/strategic relationships, save as disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, there is normally
no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise trade receivables, loan receivables, financial
assets included in deposits and other receivables, an
amount due from a joint venture, an available-for-sale
investment, a pledged bank deposit, and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 55.2%
(2015: 22.4%) and 99.7% (2015: 53.3%) of the Group’s
trade receivables, loan receivables and other receivables
in aggregate were due from the Group’s largest
customer/debtor and five largest customers/debtors,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and loan receivables are disclosed in notes 20, 21 and
22 to the financial statements, respectively.

40.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

MERBEEERERBE

/2=
(2 )
)

Bl

ERER

AEETEHMNRACEBUENE=S
SEAERE /" BRBARNEFAEER
ANETRS -  ARERERBEERAR
B W AER AR AREETRENA
BEEEAENE=FIEERE EK
MENTEPAEETNENTRS » B
MBEHmEREMBOAEEN  BELE
2R

BRARSENMKEE(BRBYIRNR
FEME R FI AR S K E A YR IR A
MHEEE - —HAER-—"RAGLRARN
H - —EAHEERE  BEWRTE
K UERRENREFEY)NEER
% DREXZHFELN  MEARER
BERZETANKREE -

EEETRRBERERF HF « #HE KT
XERERE - RIEHK ~XEBEE
FTEESHRER  HEKER EKRE
AR EH A FEGRIBER 9 BB 55.2% (=
T—AF :224%) % 99.7% (ZF—H
F :53.3%)WREBAEBRARE &
BARRAKREE EBEA -

AEBRERERKERLREREFNEE
B e R FFAEE - 9 R RER S ®RE
FzE20 ~ 21 [z 22 o
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B 755 R Ak B

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+=-A= H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BIKEREEEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) ()

40.

Liquidity risk REBE SRR

AEBEREEHUBEBERIBEEN
BEMRRAREBOENRSREME
EHESHEBROAR - AEEEREH
FRAHBRTREMEERERESR
EUHRNBEEEZEANTE - AEEME
CRBRANBLRESSEYURE
MRS TE  UENERDESEE -

The Group monitors its risks to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities
and financial assets and projected cash flows from
operations. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and cash flows from operations to
meet its liquidity requirements.

A THIARERRERRRBES LR
PR RO T 5B ER BN -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2016
—E—RE
On demand
or less than 1to
1 year 5 years Total
EEREER
DPR—F —FRHE s
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B T BT
Trade payables e BR X 386,022 - 386,022
Financial liabilities included — %I] A E b &~ 2008 K2
in other payables and FEET RIE R BF 7
accruals =K 6,605,167 - 6,605,167
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 10,000,000 208,767,123 218,767,123
Interest-bearing bank and At ERITREMEE
other borrowings (note) (F3E) 191,722,297 6,496,464 198,218,761
208,713,486 215,263,587 423,977,073
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B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

—ZE-—RE+ZA=+—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MK EREEBERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER(E
2015
—E—hF
On demand
or less than 1 to
1 year 5 years Total
FEESREZE
DR—E —ERF @it
HK$ HK$ HK$
B TT BT BT
Trade payables FE 1 BR 5K 34,305,597 = 34,305,597
Financial liabilities included 1) A EL A i - 3038 K2
in other payables and o FE ET RRIR HY B 7
accruals aE 6,860,148 — 6,860,148
Interest-bearing bank and  FHER{TREMEE (HE)
other borrowings (note) 26,742,355 5,692,401 32,434,756
67,908,100 5,692,401 73,600,501
Note: BEE

Included in the above interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group was a term loan with a carrying
amount of HK$22,226,000 (2015: HK$18,229,550), the loan
agreement of which contained a repayment on demand
clause giving the bank the right to call in the loan at any time.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the
contractual undiscounted payments of such loan of the Group
in the amount of HK$22,226,000 (2015: HK$18,229,550) were

classified as “on demand”.

Pl AEEMNGFERTREMEE DK
A B 522,226,000/ (= & — ;1 F:
18,229,550 L )M EHE R - BHEE R
HEEREEREBRENR  RRTBEBEREZ
REEEMER - Bt R ERFEBERM
T AKBNZEEEZAHNRTENRA
22,226,000 ;T (= Z — A F : 18,229,550
L) EDMBEIRERER] -
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31 December 2016

—

40.

~NEFE+Z—A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In accordance with the terms of the interest-bearing
bank borrowing which contained a repayment
on demand clause, the maturity profile of the loan as
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, based
on the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring
the effect of any repayment on demand clause, is as
follows:

40.

MEEREREBFERBR

=

(AE )

REE SR (E)

Less than
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
PR—F —Zh{F #Et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—XR"F+-_A=+—H 1,756,965 24,636,528 26,393,493
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—RE+=-HA=+—H 258,860 18,317,491 18,576,351
Capital management BXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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41.

Notes to Financial Statements

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 20
January 2017, the Group entered into a shareholders’
agreement with several independent third parties,
including Ever Step Holdings Limited (“Ever Step”),
Charm Success Group Limited (“Charm Success”)
and King Focus International Limited (“King Focus”),
whereby the Group shall subscribe 14 new shares of
King Focus at a consideration of US$14 and upon
completion of the subscription subject to certain
precedent conditions, the Group, Ever Step and Charm
Success will hold 14%, 37% and 49%, respectively,
of the enlarged issued capital of King Focus. On 23
January 2017, the Group made a shareholder loan
advance of HK$74.5 million to King Focus.

41.

B 7% R 2 B

31 December 2016
—E—RE+-A=H H

BEMRER

RZEBE—+F-—A_THHREHER
B AEERETBEIE=ZH(E2#
Ever Step Holdings Limited ([Ever
Stepl) - EREBEBERAATEMRI)
M King Focus International Limited
([King Focus|))F] L& R &% © &
b AE B UK E14% T REKing
Focus Z 14 ¥ I 17 - MR T X &
(REKE T RARGH) - KX&EE - Ever
Step X ZEK #5535 A King Focus & &
REBITRAZ14% ~ 37% K 49% °
—E—tF—A=Z+=H AEEEM
King FocusfE i 74,500,000 % 7t f& &

prcpen
B °
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31 December 2016
—E—RFt+=-A= H

42, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

42. QTR EEAARR TR

BRAARRR R B®EHRNTBHARRKED

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

BRI

follows:
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
78 T B JT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE RERE 7,500 11,250
Interests in subsidiaries ALIIENGIPA: 3 10,000,832 57
Amount due from a joint venture U —R A& &N RIFIE 4,386,958 4,386,958
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 14,395,290 4,398,265
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TET IR 588,266 591,543
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B B A | 5K08 1,064,249,953 924,575,408
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 9,126,326 2,673,045
Total current assets MBEERE 1,073,964,545 927,739,996
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries VRO PNGIE -] 823 40
Other payables and accruals RS FRIB R BT R 5,840,604 198,614
Total current liabilities MEEERE 5,841,427 198,654
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZE 1,068,123,118 927,541,342
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERARBAE
LIABILITIES 1,082,518,408 931,939,607
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE
Convertible bonds AR E 5 147,653,618 =
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 63,586,000 =
Total non-current liabilities JERBaERE 211,239,618 =
NET ASSETS EEFE 871,278,790 931,939,607
EQUITY R
Issued capital B E TR A 65,014,150 64,813,750
Reserves s 806,264,640 867,125,857
Total equity k) 871,278,790 931,939,607
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2016

T "Ft+=ZA=+—H

42. XRQFHBERRT @

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Notes:

(@)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

FEE -

(@) ARAZHEREWT :

Share Share
premium Capital Warrant option Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R EER BxfE DRERRE  BRERE 2R EH
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2015 RZE-81%-A—-H 372,189,470 10,177,239 7,048,243 1,805,100  (121,713,669) 269,506,383
Loss and total comprehensive FREER2EERAS
loss for the year - - - - (16,895,842) (16,895,842
Issue of shares BIRhG 508,000,000 - — 112,000,000 — 620,000,000
Share issue expenses RAETER (5,484,684) = = = —  (5,484,684)
At 31 December 2015 and at R=ZF—h%E
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-Ak
“E-RE-f-H 874,704,786 10,177,239 7,048,243 113,805,100 (138,609,511) 867,125,857
Loss and total comprehensive FREER2EESEEH
loss for the year - - - - (62,865,217)  (62,865,217)
Issue of shares upon exercise {1 ARERRETR
of warrants 2,928,417 - (924,417) - - 2,004,000
Release of capital reserve  HEMBAAREE
upon disposal of BARE
subsidiaries - (10,177,239) - - 10,177,239 -
Transfer of share option BREERRER
reserve upon the expiry of  EERRIERE
share option - - - (1,805,100) 1,805,100 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+=A
=1=F 877,633,203 - 6,123,826 112,000,000 (189,492,389) 806,264,640

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s capital

reserve represented (i) the excess of the net asset

value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group

reorganisation in 2009, over the nominal value of the

Company’s share issued in exchange therefor; and (ii)

the waiver of amounts due to certain parties related to

certain then beneficial shareholders of the Company.

R-_ZBE—AF+-_A=+—8 AR
A2 ERFEBER()VBREBE-ZZNEFH
SESHARBNNERAR ZEEFE
BRAR BER R EITHRG
HE R (i) EHEEMERQRTET
ERERRRAGEAENE T ALHR

Ig o
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42, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

43.

44.

Notes: (continued)

(a)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
(continued)

The share option reserve comprised the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses should the related options expire
or be forfeited.

The warrant reserve is in connection with the warrants
subscribed which were yet to be exercised as further
detailed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related warrants
were exercised, or be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses should the related warrants expire.

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been

re-presented as if the operation discontinued during

the year had been discontinued at the beginning of the

comparative period (note 11).

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2017.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFYHEE

TXHINAEERBERAETBRFENERER
AEBR-ZZF—R"F - ZFT—HF - =@
F T =FERZET——F+=ZA=1+—H
MEENBEOHE  BEERIHEEE T
BEEZMBERRULSEIN(REA)AT o &
BMEW TR EERMBEREN—FH °

A summary of the Group’s results for the last five financial
years and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012 as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and restated
as appropriate, is set out below. The summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE “T-0% i Sifas “T-=F —E—-F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(mEZ7) (BE5) (5 &5) (mE7)
RESULTS #E
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  BEE&%iK
REVENUE Wigs 3,246,906,008 271,220,536 194,140,279 1,978,094 -
Cost of sales HERR (3,114,871,260)  (247,819,646)  (185,669,796) (4,927,334) =
Gross profit/(loss) £/ (£R) 132,034,748 23,400,890 8,470,483 (2,949,240) -
Other income and gains, net Hep A KMz - 558 6,220,993 26,639,581 6,807,554 252,605 30,718
Selling and distribution expenses  §5% Kk $HAk & (2,488,228) (3,214,820) (433,468) - -
General and administrative —RETBER
expenses (34,824,382)  (33,578,226) (17,223,769 (1,008,606) (3,139,311)
Other expenses, net HthF% - #8 (83,531,148) (160,606) (3,852,992) (895,449) =
Finance costs BEMA (33,677,555) (1,886,327) (118,608) (3,092,330) (691,258)
Share of loss of a joint venture ~ JE(E—FRASARIER (3,123,146) (7,854,777) (2,154,466) = =
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BEAER/(B8) (19,388,718) 3,345,715 (8,505,266) (7,688,020) (3,799,851)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEfiEs/ (A%) (12,015,954) (2,862,100) (1,145,260) = =
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE BEESXBZENEN/
YEAR FROM CONTINUING (B8)
OPERATIONS (31,404,672) 483,615 (9,650,526) (7,688,020) (3,799,851)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B I-F& %%
Loss for the year from BERIEEEXBFHNEE
a discontinued operation (828,460)  (11,044,111)  (39,934,526)  (57,543,117)  (92,846,591)
Gain on disposal of HEDK FEEERE 7 s
a discontinued operation 15,603,267 2,982,161 — - —
14,774,807 (8,061,950)  (39,934,526)  (57,543,117)  (92,846,591)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENEE (16,629,865) (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)  (96,646,442)
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I FYHEE

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=t-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-NE “ZT-hE “ZTF “E-=fF “T-CF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(i E7) (s E=5) (m&7) (fma&E7)

Attributable to: A&7 I
Owners of the parent [SUNGIEEEPN (16,629,865) (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)  (96,646,442)

As at 31 December
R+=A=t-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE ZE-ff —E-MF —T—=F 2 F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BIL o
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE

TOTAL ASSETS BEAR 1,355,150,887 1,034,268,165 457,008,714 154,972,453 252,744,106
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEA% (449,010,057)  (103,401,085)  (155,067,575)  (141,292,990)  (243,950,572)
906,140,830 930,867,080 301,941,139 13,679,463 8,793,534
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